- “Silverton

VILLAGE OF SILVERTON

AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL TO BE HELD
June 11,2019
COUNCIL CHAMBERS ~ VILLAGE OFFICE - 421 LAKE AVLE.
7:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. THE VILLAGE OF SILVERTON ACKNOWLEDGES THE INDIGENOUS
PEOPLES ON WHOSE TRADITIONAL TERRITORIES WE STAND

" C. ADDITION OF LATE ITEMS IF ANY

D. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

E. ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES

1. Minutes of Regular Council Meeting of May 14, 2019
2. Minutes of the Committee of the Whole May 22, 2019

F. DELEGATIONS AND PETITIONS

1. West Kootenay EcoSociety




G. UNFINISHED BUSINESS/BUSINESS ARISING

G1. Kootenay-wide Inter-Community Business Licence

Recommendation:

Pursuant to the report of the Chief Administrative Officer, the Village of Silverton
Council receive the report from the Office of Innovation and Collaboration titled
"Kootenay-wide Inter-Community Business Licence (ICBL) Proposal”; AND

FURTHER, approve the proposal to be part of the ICBL partnership with
participating municipalities throughout the Kootenays; AND

FURTHER that staff update the corresponding Village Policies and Bylaws,
as required.

G2. Kootenay Savings resolutions for Corporate credit card

Recommendation:

Pursuant to the report of the Chief Administrative Officer, the Village of Silverton
Council authorize CAO Hillary Elliott to be the business representative; AND

FURTHER authorize CAO Hillary Elliott as the authorized user; AND

FURTHER that the spending limit for the card and authorized user be $10,000.00.

H. NEW BUSINESS

L. 2018 Annual Report and Financial Statements

Receive for information.

1. CORRESPONDENCE FOR INFORMATION

1. BC Rural Health Network
2, Access Awareness Day June 1, 2019
3. Kootenay Cannabis Symposium — Report, reflections and summary

June 11, 2019 Regular Meeting of Council Agenda




J. COUNCIL REPORTS

1. Mayor Jason Clarke
¢ BC Mayors Caucus
o Slocan Lake Arts Council Liaison

2. Councillor Leah Main
e RDCK Director for the Village of Silverton
e West Kootenay Boundary Regional Hospital Board
» Rosebery Parklands and Trails Commission
Winlaw Regional and Nature Park Commission
Slocan Valley Economic Development Commission
FCM Board
Health Committee - Slocan District Chamber of Commerce
RDI Climate Adaptation project Team

3. Councillor K. Gordon
e Municipal Emergency
Slocan District Chamber of Commerce
Composting Project Liaison Alternate
RDI Climate Adaptation project Team Alternate

4, Councillor T, Gordon
¢ Recreation Commission No. 6

¢ Kitunaxa Kinbasket Treaty Advisory Committee (TAC)
¢ RDI Climate Adaptation project Team

5. Councillor Arlene Yofenoff
¢ Cultural Planning Group
» Composting Project Liaison (Healthy Community Society of the North S.V.)

¢ RDI Climate Adaptation project Team Alternate

K. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS

1. CAO Report

2. Public Foreman Report

L. BYLAWS AND POLICY

None at this time.

June 11, 2019 Regular Meeting of Council Agenda




M. PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD/PRESS

Terms of reference as per the Procedure Bylaw include;

The maximum time allotted is two (2) minutes.

s The Public Input is for items on the Council Agenda only.

» The Public Input Period provides an opportunity for public input only,
without expectation of response from Council.

N. IN CAMERA MEETING: there will be an In-Camera Meeting at this time. This meeting
will be closed to the public in accordance with Sections 90 — 1 (¢) employee relations; (i)
solicitor-client privilege.

The Regular Meeting recessed at pm in order to conduct the Closed Meeting.

The Regular Meeting reconvened at pm

O. ITEMS BROUGHT FORWARD FROM IN CAMERA

P. ADJOURNMENT

Tune 11, 2019 Regular Meeting of Council Agenda
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MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING HELD IN COUNCIL
CHAMBERS ON TUESDAY, MAY 14, 2019 AT 7:00PM

PRESENT: Mayor Clarke, Councillors K. Gordon, T. Gordon, L. Main, A. Yofonoff
ABSENT:
STAFF: H. Elliott, Chief Administrative Officer

A, CALL TO ORDER

Mavor Clarke Called the Meeting to Order at 7:00 pm.

B. THE VILLAGE OF SILVERTON ACKNOWLEDGES THE INDIGENOUS
PEOPLES ON WHOSE TRADITIONAL TERRITORIES WE STAND

C. ADDITION OF LATE ITEMS IF ANY

I11 - RDCK Housing Needs Report RE: Letter of Support

D. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

052/2019 - Moved, seconded that the Agenda be adopted as amended.

CARRIED

E. ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES

053/2019 - Moved, seconded that the Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April
9, 2019, Special Council Meeting of April 30, 2019 at 4:00pm, and Special
Council meeting of April 30, 2019 at 4:30pm be adopted as presented.

CARRIED




MAY 14, 2019 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
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F. DELEGATIONS AND PETITIONS

None at this time.

G. UNFINISHED BUSINESS/BUSINESS ARISING

None at this time.

H. NEW BUSINESS

H1. ELECTRONIC COLLECTION SERVICE

054/2019 - Moved, seconded that Silverton Village Council refer this item to
the next Committee of the Whole on May 22, 20619.

I. CORRESPONDENCE FOR INFORMATION

I1. 2018 CIP FUNDED PROJECT RE: REQUEST TO REALLOCATE
FUNDS

055/2019 - Moved, seconded That the Village of Silverton Council approve the
reallocation of funds as requested by Slocan Lake Solutions.

CARRIED

111. RDCK HOUSING NEEDS REPORT RE: LETTER OF SUPPORT

056/2019 - Moved, seconded That the Village of Silverton Council write a letter
of suppott in principle for the RDCK Housing Needs Report.

CARRIED




MAY 14, 2019 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
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J. COUNCIL REPORTS

J2.  COUNCILLOR MAIN’S REPORT

057/2019 - Moved, seconded That the Village of Silverton Council direct staff to
develop a similar Declaration based on the Regional District resolutions passed on
April 10, 2019 regarding “Climate Action Imperative”.

CARRIED

K. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS

Administration Reports received for information.

L. BYLAWS AND POLICY

L1. 2019-2023 FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL PLAN BYLAW NO. 510 - 2019

058/2019 - Moved, seconded That the Village of Silverton Council reconsider
and finally adopt 2019 - 2023 Five Year Financial Plan Bylaw No. 510 - 2019.

CARRIED

L2. 2019 TAX RATE BYLAW NO. 511 -2019

059/2019 - Moved, seconded That the Village of Silverton Council reconsider
and finally adopt 2019 Tax Rate Bylaw No. 511 - 2019.

CARRIED




MAY 14, 2019 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

M. PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD/PRESS

Mr. Vern Hartman spoke to requests on behalf of the Silverton Community Club
for the July 1, 2019 celebrations.

Mr. Don Broughton inquired about meeting procedures, the CAO report, and the
process for hiring the campground attendant.

N. IN CAMERA MEETING:

The Regular Meeting recessed at 7:55 pm in order to conduct the Closed Meeting.

The Regular Meeting reconvened at 8:32 pm.

O.ITEMS BROUGHT FORWARD FROM IN CAMERA

None at this time.

P. ADJOURNMENT

060/2019 — Moved that Council adjourn at 8:33 pm.

CERTIFIED CORRECT:

Mayor Clarke Chief Administrative Officer




MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE COUNCIL MEETING HELD IN
COUNCIL CHAMBERS ON WEDNESDAY, MAY 22, 2019 AT 4:00PM

PRESENT: Mayor Clarke, Councillors K. Gordon, T. Gordon, L. Main, A. Yofonoff

ABSENT:

STAFF: H. Elliott, Chief Administrative Officer

CALL TO ORDER

E.

Mayor Clarke called the meeting to order at 4:00pm.

THE VILLAGE OF SILVERTON ACKNOWLEDGES THE INDIGENOUS
PEOPLES ON WHOSE TRADITIONAL TERRITORIES WE STAND

ADDITION OF LATE ITEMS IF ANY

DELEGATION

None at this time.

DISCUSSION

1. Welcome sien —Welcome to Silverton, Please Drive Gently

Direct staff to look into cost for a wood or metal sign.

E2. Huoman/Wildlife conflict — annual discussion

Direct staff to obtain current WildSafe BC coordinator information.




MAY 22, 2019 Committee of Whole Council Meeting Minutes
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Direct staff to present changes to Council to the Garbage Bylaw for best practices
regarding deterring wildlife.

E3. Compost Bins Placement

Councillor A, Yofonoff and K. Gordon as Council liaisons will discuss with partners
regarding changing composting bin placement to be brought back to staff for discussion
with all stakeholders (Council Liaisons, Society members, and Village staff).

E4. EleétronLic Recycling

Received for information. Future discussion once new RDCK recycling depot is in place.

F. ADJOURNMENT

Meeting adjourned at 4:50 pm.

CERTTFIED CORRECT:

Mayor Clarke Chief Administrative Officer




WEST KOOTENAY

Society

June 5, 2019

Dear Silverton Mayor & Council,

The West Kootenay EcoSociety and our local volunteer team and supporters in Silverton will be
coming to your council meeting on June 11. We will be presenting on the topic of transitioning
to 100% renewable energy no later than 2050.

Transitioning to 100% renewable energy by 2050 means carbon-neutrality at the community-
level with any energy use coming from renewable sources; including electricity, heating and
cooling, transportation and waste management for the whole village. That means homes,
businesses and village operations. Starting with energy efficiency and energy conservation as
priorities, then procuring any remaining energy from renewable sources is how get to 100%
renewable energy.

Local governments around the world are leading the global movement to phase out fossil fuels
and phase-in clean energy in order to build healthier and safer communities and have stronger

economies.

Your community supports the transition to 100% renewable energy. Slocan, New Denver,
Rossland, Nelson and the Regional District of the Central Kootenay have already passed
resolutions and committed to 100% renewable energy. So have 7 other cities across Canada
(Victoria, Saanich, Vancouver, Regina, Guelph, Oxford County and Charlottetown), over a
hundred in the US, and hundreds more worldwide. Companies across the globe are pledging to
transition to 100% renewable energy, with many already reaching this goal. This is truly a
strong movement. This is Silverton’s opportunity to join the network of innovative
municipalities and be a leader for a healthier, safer, stronger, and more active community.

Since we started this campaign in 2016, we've had a number of successes:

e Developed the West Kootenay Community Energy and Infrastructure Report to give us a
baseline analysis of where we're at with community carbon pollution, policies and
incentive programs;

o Completed Energy Modeling that shows it is possible to get to 100% renewable energy
by 2050 in the West Kootenays;

e Hosted a regional conference on renewable energy and energy efficiency in Castlegar in
2017 which featured keynote speakers from 100% renewable cities: Vancouver, BC
(former Deputy Mayor, Councillor Andrea Reimer, and Climate Change Manager, Matt
Horne) and Oxford County, ON (Jay Heaman, Manager of Strategic Initiatives). [t was
attended by over 200 residents, and 75 local government and other key stakeholders;

e Hired an Energy Planning Director to work with local government across the region who
have signed-on to 100% renewable energy to develop the cutting-edge West Kootenay

100% Renewable Energy Plan to achieve this ambitious goal, thanks to support from
#206-507 Baker St. # Nelson BC, V1L 412 » (250) 354-1909
www.ecosociety.ca » info@ecosociety.ca

F1




FCM. This project is underway and we would be very happy to work with Silverton
council and staff to ensure Silverton’s opportunities and needs are represented;

« Engaged over 8,000 people, including over 30% of Silverton’s residents, to sign-on to
support 100% renewable energy and over 70 local businesses and organizations.

I'm looking forward to presenting to Council to overview this initiative. | encourage you to pass
a resolution supporting 100% renewable energy and to encourage the Village to work with us
and other local governments on developing the strategy to achieve a clean energy future.

With respect,

Montana Burgess
Executive Director

West Kootenay EcoSociety
Renewablekootenays.ca
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Administrative Report: Hillary Elliott, CAO

Village of Silverton Council
Regular Meeting of Silverton Village Council June 11, 2019

Executive Summary

The purpose of this report is to present information regarding the Kootenay-wide
Intercommunity Business Licence partnership.

Background

Council received information earlier this year regarding this Economic Development initiative that
has been supported by the provincial Small Business Branch.

Due to the challenges for small businesses, specifically in the purchasing of business licences in
multiple communities for mobile businesses (such as contractors) that have negative
administrative and financial impacts due to purchasing multiple business licences for the
communities they provide service, the Kootenay-wide Intercommunity Business Licence
initiative was created.

Financial Impact

The fee for a Kootenay-wide business licence is $100.00 for all the participating local
governments and municipalities. The fee is part of the revenue for the community the business
purchases the business licence from.

Discussion

Small businesses are the backbone of our province and our community and greater area. This is
an economic initiative that does not have a negative impact on the Village’s administration and
has a great benefit for the small businesses that are eligible and work in multiple communities,

like the Slocan Valley,

Benefits for local governments:

e Increases licencing compliance

¢ Reduces business licence application processing

s Improves information flow among participating LG
¢ Increases ability to monitor compliance

Benefits for Businesses:

s Saves time and money by purchasing on Mobile Licence instead of multiple business
licences




G1

» Reduces administrative burden
s Allows businesses to expand operations to where their services are needed

Benefits for Residents:

¢ Increases choice in service providers
¢ Provides assurance that the contractors they hire are licenced to work in their area

Recommendation:

Pursuant to the report of the Chief Administrative Officer, the Village of Silverton
Council receive the report from the Office of Innovation and Collaboration titled
"Kootenay-wide Inter-Community Business Licence (ICBL) Proposal”; AND

FURTHER, approve the proposal to be part of the ICBL partnership with
participating municipalities throughout the Kootenays; AND

FURTHER that staff update the corresponding Village Policies and Bylaws,
as required.

Hillary Elliott
CAQ, Village of Silverton
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CORITISH Mobile Business Licence Program

A Mobile Business Licence allows eligible businesses (e.g. contractors) to operate
across participating communities without having to buy a separate business licence
in each community.

There are many benefits to a Mobile Business Licence:

For Local Governments: For Businesses:
@ Increases licensing compliance @ Savestime and money by purchasing
@ Reduces business licence application one Mobile Business Licence instead of
processing multiple business licences
® Improves information flow among ® Reduces administrative burden
participating local governments ® Allows businasses to expand operations
® Increases ability to monitor compliance to where thelir services are needed

For Residents:

@ Increases choice in service providers
® Provides assurance that the contractors thay hire are licensed to work in their area

b
Mobile Business Licence Program Participants

rmstrang - Penticton
Coldstream < Princaton -

West Vancouver
orth Vancouver (Chy)
d North Vaneouver (District} |-

Campbell Rlvar .

Interested in joining the Moblle Busmess Licence Program?
Contact the Small Business Branch

250-387-4699 | SmallBusinessBranch@gov.bc.ca
' www.gov.bc.ca/smallbusiness




Attachments
City of ###
BYLAW NO. ##H#

A BYLAW TO ESTABLISH A SCHEME FOR INTER-COMMUNITY BUSINESS
LICENCING AND REGULATION OF TRADES, OCCUPATIONS AND BUSINESSES

WHEREAS Council may, pursuant to Section 8(6) of the Community Charter, regulate
in relation to business;

AND WHEREAS pursuant to Section 14 of the Community Charter, two or more
municipalities may, by bylaw adopted by the Council of each participating government,
establish an Inter-Community scheme in relation to one or more matters;

AND WHEREAS pursuant to Section 15(1) of the Community Charter, Council may
provide terms and conditions that may be imposed for obtaining, continuing to hold or
renewing a licence, permit or approvat and specify the nature of the terms and
conditions and wha may impose them;

AND WHEREAS Council has given notice of its intention to adopt this bylaw by
publishing such notice in two consecutive issues of a newspaper, the last publication
appearing not less than three (3) and not more than ten (10) days before the hearing
and has provided an opportunity for persons who consider they are affected by this
bylaw to make representations to Council at a hearing pursuant to Section 59 of the
Community Charter,

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the City of ### in open meeting assembled, hereby
ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:
1. Title

This Bylaw may be cited as the City of ### "INTER-COMMUNITY BUSINESS
LICENCE BYLAW 2019 NO. ##H#HE. ‘

2. Definitions
In this bylaw, unless the context otherwise requires,
“‘Business” has the meaning as defined by the “Community
' Charter Schedule — Definitions and Rules of
Interpretation”,
“Excluded Business” means a Business excluded from application

for an Inter-Community Business Licence and
includes those Businesses referred to in
Schedule 'A' attached hereto and forming part
of this Bylaw.

“Inter-Community Business” means a Business that performs a service or
activity within more than one Participating




“Inter-Community Business Licence”

“Standard Business Licence”

“Participating Government”

Government by moving from client to client
rather than having clients come to them.

This includes but is not limited to trades,
plumbers, electricians, cleaning services, pest
control or other similar Businesses. This does
not include fruit stands, flea markets, trade
shows or other similar Businesses.

means a Business Licence which authorizes
Inter-Community Business to be carried on
within the boundaries of any or all of the
Participating Governments in accordance with
this Bylaw and will be in addition to a Standard
Business Licence.

" means a licence or permit, other than an Inter-

Community Business Licence, issued by a
Participating Government that authorizes a
Business to be carried on within the
jurisdictional boundaries of that Participating
Government.

means the following communities that have
adopted the Inter-Community Business
Licence Bylaw and any other communities that
adopt this bylaw at a later date:

City of Castlegar

City of Cranbrook

City of Creston

City of Fernie

City of Golden

City of Grand Forks

City of Greenwood

City of Kimberley

City of Nelson

City of Rossland

City of Trall

District of Elkford

District of Invermere

Village of Canal Flats

Village of Fruitvale

Village of Kaslo

Village of Midway

Village of Montrose

Village of Nakusp

Village of New Denver

Village of Radium Hot Springs

Village of Salmo

Village of Silverton




Village of Slocan
Village of Warfield

“Person” has the meaning ascribed to it by the
Interpretation Act.

“Premise” means a fixed or permanent location where the
applicant ordinarily carries on Business.

“Principal Government” means the Participating Government where a

Business is physically located, or has a
Premise, or, where the licensee does not
maintain a Premise in any of the Participating
Governments, the Government that issues the
Inter-Community Business Licence.

3. Regulations
a) Subiject to Section (c) and (&), a person who has obtained an Inter-

Community Business Licence may carry on business within a Participating
Government for the term authorized by the Inter-Community Business
Licence without obtaining a Standard Business Licence in the other
Participating Governments.
A Participating Government may issue an Inter-Community Business Licence
to an applicant for an Inter-Community Business Licence provided the
Business type is an Inter-Community Business and is not an Excluded
Business, the applicant has a valid Business Licence issued by that
Participating Government, and the applicant meets the requirements of this
Bylaw. :
A person holding an Inter-Community Business Licence must comply with all
other regulations and bylaws of the Participating Government in which they
are carrying on Business.
A Business that operates under an Inter-Community Business Licence in
more than one Participating Government shall only apply for an Inter-
Community Business Licence from the Participating Government in which
they maintain a Premise.
Notwithstanding the issuance of an Inter-Community Business Licence, every
person who carries on, maintains, owns or operates, within a Participating
Government, any profession, business, trade, occupation, calling, undertaking
or thing in or from more than one branch, office, place, premise or store shall
obtain a separate Standard Business Licence for each branch, office, place,
premise or store. And further, notwithstanding Sections (b), (c), and (d}, the
Participating Governments agree that where an applicant for an Inter-
Community Business Licence:

does not maintain Premises in any of the Participating Governments, then

the applicant may apply at any one of them; or




i. maintains a Premise in more than one of the Participating Governments,
the applicant must apply at one of the Participating Governments where
they maintain a Premise.

4. Fees

a) The fee for an Inter-Community Business Licence is $100 and shall be paid in
full at the time of application and will be retained by the Participating
Government that issues the licence.

b) The fee for an Inter-Community Business Licence is separate and additional
to any Business Licence fee that may be required.

¢) The annual Inter-Community Business Licence fees prescribed in this bylaw
may be reduced pro-rate in respect of any person who becomes liable to be
licensed AFTER the commencement of the licence period, on the same basis
as the municipal business licience.

5. Application

a) Every Inter-Community Business Licence shall be issued on a standard form
provided for that purpose, as agreed upon from time to time by the
Participating Governments and including, as a minimum, the following
information:

i. Disclosing the nature and character of the profession, business, trade,
occupation, calling, undertaking or thing to be carried on, maintained,
owned or operated by the applicant;

i. Declaring the mailing address and contact information for such profession,
business, trade, occupation, calling, undertaking or thing;

ii. Declaring the number of persons engaged or occupied in such profession,
business, trade, occupation, calling, undertaking or thing;
iv.  Disclosing the number of distinctive lines of goods sold or offered for sale;

v. Including any other information concerning the profession, business,
trade, occupation, calling, undertaking or thing which the Participating
Government may require.

b) Each Participating Government shall provide to all other Participating
Governments standardized information regarding the Inter-Community
Business Licences issued, by way of at least weekly updates on a shared
database (www.mobilebusinessreqgistry.ca) available to all Participating
Governments.

8. Suspension or Cancellation of an Inter-Community Business Licence

a) A Council or Designated Officer or Employee of a Participating Government
may exercise the authority of the Principal Government in accordance with
Sections 15 and 60 of the Community Charter to suspend or cancel an Inter-
Community Business Licence. The suspension or cancellation shall be in
effect throughout all of the Participating Governments and it shall be unlawful




for the holder to carry on the Business authorized by the Inter-Community
Business Licence in any Participating Governments for the period of the
suspension or cancellation.

b} Before suspending or canceling an Inter-Community Business Licence under
Section 6(a), the Participating Government must give the licence holder
notice of the proposed action and must inform the licence holder of their right
to be heard.

If the licence holder wishes to exercise this right, the Participating
Government shall communicate in writing to the licence holder and
Principal Government that issued the Inter-Community Business Licence,
together with such documentary evidence of the reasons for suspension
or cancellation as may be available and the request to be heard. Such
Principal Government shall then, as soon thereafter as reasonably
possible, provide the Licence Holder an opportunity to address their
respective Council who will then consider whether to suspend or cancel
the Inter-Community Business Licence.

If the licence holder does not exercise their right to be heard, the
Participating Government may suspend or cancel the Inter-Community
Business Licence in accordance with Section 6(a).

¢) Any conduct by a licence holder resulting in a hearing made under Section
8(b)(i) shall be considered by the Council of the Principal Government as
though it happened within the jurisdiction of the Principal Government.

d) A decision by a Principal Government or Participating Government to cancel
or suspend an Inter-Community Business Licence under Section 6 (b) shall
be honoured by all Participating Governments.

e) Nothing in this Bylaw impedes the authority of a Participating Government to
suspend or cancel any Business Licence issued by that Government, or to
enact regulations in respect of any class of Business Licence in accordance
with Section 15 of the Community Charter and amendments thereto.

. Miscellangous

a) A Participating Government may, by notice in writing to each of the other
Participating Governments, withdraw from the Inter-Community Business
Licence scheme established by this Bylaw.

Notice must:

Set out the date on which the withdrawing Government will ho longer
recognize the validity within its boundaries of business licences issued
pursuant to this Bylaw, which date must be at least six months from the
date of the notice; and

Include a certified copy of the Bylaw authorizing the withdrawal.




b) An Inter-Community Business Licence issued prior to the effective date of the
withdrawal shall, until it expires, remain valid within the boundaries of the
withdrawing Government.

8. Severability

a) If any section, paragraph or phrase in this Bylaw is for any reason held to be
invalid by a decision of a Court of competent jurisdiction, that portion shall be
severed and the remainder of this Bylaw shall continue in full force and effect.

9. Effective Date:

This Bylaw shall come into full force and effect on the first day of January 2020
and operate as a pilot program until December 2021.

PASSED FIRST READING th##H#H
PASSED SECOND READING ####
PASSED THIRD READING #####
ADOPTED ###H#H#

MAYORCHIEFCHAIR

CORPORATE OFFICER
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SCHEDULE 'A’
EXCLUDED BUSINESSES
The following Business types are Excluded Businesses for the purposes of application
for an Inter-Community Business Licence under the Inter-Community Business Licence
Scheme set out in the bylaw:
1. Social escort services.

2. Vehicles for hire (for example, taxis, limousines, or buses).

3. Body-rub services (which includes the manipulating, touching or stimulating by
any means, of a Person or part thereof, but does not include medical, therapeutic
or cosmetic massage treatment given by a person duly licensed or registered
under any statute of the Province. of British Columbia governing such activities or
a therapeutic touch technique).

4. Mobile food vendors, fruit stands, flea markets, trade shows or other similar
Businesses. '

5. Cannabis related businesses ( a business which involves the sale of cannabis).
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e Silverton o

Administrative Report: Hillary Elliott, CAO

Village of Silverton Council

Regular Meeting of Silverton Village Council June 11, 2019

Executive Summary

The purpose of this report is to present information regarding the Village corporate credit card,

Background
Kootenay Savings Mastercard provider recently discontinued the service for our credit card.
After research through Kootenay Savings, on-line, and speaking with the CFO, the Village of

New Denver, and the Village of Slocan, the following resolution is mandatory for obtaining the
credit card and is the best choice for the Village, at this time.

The CAO will be the only staff or Council member authorized to use the credit card. All users
must be named in the resolution, have the limit for that user stated, and must have their name on
the credit card along with the corporate name, Village of Silverton.

Financial Impact

The credit card is competitive with other corporate business cards. The Village pays any charges
to the credit card monthly and does not accrue any interest charges.

Discussion

The Village requires a credit card for corporate business. Most commonly annual dues and fees
for operations and for booking accommodation and travel for Council and staff.

Recommendation:

Pursuant to the report of the Chief Administrative Officer, the Village of Silverton
Council authorize CAQ Hillary Elliott to be the business representative; AND

FURTHER authorize CAO Hillary Elliott as the authorized user; AND
FURTHER that the spending limit for the credit card and authorized user be $10,000.00.

Hillary Elliott
CAQ, Village of Silverton
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MESSAGE FROM THE MAYOR

It is my pleasure to introduce the 2018 Annual Municipal Report for the Village of Silverton. [ am in year
five of being your Mayor and I continue to be honoured to hold the position.

Thank-you to the Village Council and the citizens of Silverton for their continued support in the initiatives
our staff has taken on as well as the professional development of Council — myself included. Without your
support we would not be able to attend the conventions we do, Without attending these conventions we
would be out of the loop on what is happening in our region, province and country, We would be less
effective elected officials both through loss of voice to the region, province and country as well as the loss
our continual education. Lastly, we would not have had the chances we’ve had to forge the relationships

and partnerships we have.

As you may know we have been successful for 5 years in a row now getting Councitlor (and RDCK
Director) Leah Main elected to the FCM (Federation of Canadian Municipalities) board via the BC Caucus.
This year we were also successful in getting Leah Main elected ag the Caucus Chair. This means that
Silverton is a key player in setting policy used to engage the Federal Government via the FCM
organization. It also means that we have a continued opportunity to help ensure that both federal policies
and granting programs are viewed through a rural lens.

I'have decided not to run again for the AKBLG (Association of Kootenay Boundary Local Governments)
Executive, When I joined the AKBLG Executive I wanted to see the organization gain capacity, increase
it’s effectiveness for it’s members and have & better set of documentation with which to run it’s business.

After four years all of these things are well in hand.

This year having been an election year has seen the addition of two new members of Council. Tanya
Gordon and Kerry Gordon bring with them a wealth of knowledge and experience. We are fortunate to
have them on our Council; they are valuable new members to our high functioning team,

We are still wrapping up many of the initiatives started in previous years. One that comes to mind is the
outdoor exercise equipment being installed in the day park. We are very pleased to see this nearing
completion.

Despite having a very full plate our dedicated and hardworking staff are managing to fit in an QCP
(Official Community Plan) review, Over the next year we will see community engagement events,
questionnaires and a fair bit of outreach to ensure that we have ample community input into the visioning

of Silverton for the next decade.

In a nutshell, Silverton’s Statf and Council will continue to work tirelessly on your behalf doing our best to
keep Silverton vibrant and thriving,

Thank-you all for deing your part to realize this shared goal.

Jason Clarke
Mayor
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Vision and Guiding Principles

> Silverton will be an innovative and vibrant Village where people desire to
live, work, play and retire. We aspire to be a community that works |
together to provide opportunities, protect the natural environment, natural
eco-systems, built and natural assets.

» Through visionary leadership, citizens are engaged in maintaining a safe,
caring and vibrant community that honours our culture, heritage and the

environment.

> The vision of the Village of Silverton is to create and nurture an
environment in which people are able to pursue the fulfillment of their
values in harmony with the community and the environment.

» We should live within the carrying capacity of the natural environment,
including our watershed.

> We should leave the next generation with equal or better opportunities
than the present generation has enjoyed. We should create a harmonious
balance between economic opportunity, social conscience and
environmental stewardship.

> We must look beyond traditional municipal boundaries and urban/rural
boundaries to incorporate regional ecosystem boundaries.

» Successful sustainability is a grass roots initiative that must be supported by
the community.




Strategic Plan for Annual Report 2018 (Rated by top five priorities)

Category

Project

Priority

“Improyvema

Communication

Better communication and civic engagement

Communication

Engaging young people - volunteerism, committees,
commissions, public office, etc...

Communication

Better engagement w/school

Young farnily support

VillageSelling:= Soil; Gravel ;Woodchips

Facilities

Better understanding of our facilities

Facilities Maintenance Plan/Asset Management Plan 1

Facilities Gallery re-opening project pi
Creelside Campsite - Large roof over washrocm/basin area

Facilities (5K cost)

Facilities Get facilities to operate more smoothly - be more profitable

Facilities Campground Update - Wireless internet

Facilities Geothermal/District Heating - get baseline
Campground Overhaul - communal fire pit, programming

Facilities for campers, sing along

Facilities Campground Update - Power hookups {serviced campsites)
Campground Qverhau! - permanent structures - micro

Facllities homes - yurts - cob home ete.

n TLC

Lake/Creek

Dike Maintenance
Lake/Creek Riparian protection - Education
Lake/Creak Slgnage
Lake/Creek Education in general
Lake/Creek Lake Management
Lake/Creel Lake share walking trail
Lake/Creak Silverton Creek mouth erosion
Lake/Creak Water craft education

Services

Properly Maintaining current services

Services

Recycling - Waste Elimination

Sarvices

Recycling - Electronics




What We Do and Qur Successes in 2018

Corporate Services

The administrative function of the organization under Corporate Services is
responsible for the overall treasury function of the Village including, but not
limited to, coordination of budgets and five-year financial plans, property
taxation, financial cash management, payroll, accounts receivable/payable and
financial forecasting and controls. The staff are responsible for managing and
monitoring the Village's overall budget as well as providing financial data and
advice to Village Council and staff.

It is the objective of the Village through the office staff to operate an efficient and
self-sufficient municipality while maintaining a well-serviced, safe, livable and
sustainable community. Our focus is to provide maximum efficiency and
reasonable taxation, while also making provision for future infrastructure and
service needs. The staff are committed to sound financial management of its
operations, debt, and reserve balances and addressing our aging municipal
infrastructure. The Village will effectively plan and steward the continuance of a
healthy financial framework on these issues for current and future generations.

The legislative responsibilities of the staff and organization is to provide corporate
and other assistance to Village Council in their efforts to address community
issues and provide good governance. This aspect of the organization is
responsible for managing and maintaining all Village records and ensuring access
to those records. Staff undertake such works as contractual agreements, policies,
bylaws, agendas, meeting minutes and conducts general elections.




Public Works / Environmental Services

Streets:

This department is overseen by the Public Works Foreman with the assistance of
the public works assistant. Staff provides and maintains a number of essential
services and infrastructure for the Village. This would include roads and drainage,
management of the Village’s fleet, parks operations, building maintenance, water,
recycling and overall management of the environmental services.

Staff are responsible for the maintenance and repair of the paved and unpaved
street network in the Village. Maintenance would include pothole patching, crack
sealing, grading, street sweeping, snow removal, sidewalk repair, maintenance
and replacement. The replacement and upgrade of deteriorated roadways is
subject to annual budgetary review and is prioritized based upon many factors
such a surface condition and the condition of the existing underground
infrastructure. The five-year financial plan reflects a commitment to the
improvement of the streets in a strategic and fiscally responsible manner. The
Village has a dedicated team of employees who work diligently to ensure that the
roadways and pedestrian sidewalks are well maintained for the protection and
safety of the citizens of Silverton,

Water, Storm Water:

Staff are responsible for the water collection and distribution of the municipal
water system and storm water collection system for the Village. The Village has a
team of qualified operators responsible for overseeing and maintaining the water
and storm water facilities and main line and service infrastructure.

The Village maintains compliance with federal, provincial and local regulations
and policies in maintaining our water and storm water collection and distribution
systems in the Village. The Village draws its water from a ground water source to
our infrastructure which includes 2 deep water wells. The water is pumped to 2
water reservoirs then is distributed to water zones. The Village has approximately
5,600 feet of water distribution mains.




Solid Waste Collection and Recycling:

The Village offers curbside garbage collection services on a weekly basis.
Recycling services are provided by on-site recycling feeder stations located on the
grounds of the Village Office. The recycling component has diverted a substantial
volume of material away from the waste stream. This is proving to be very
sustainable and reduces costs for landfill operations.

Parks:

The staff are responsible for the maintenance and repair of all Village parks. Key
maintenance operations include grass maintenance, irrigation, facility and
equipment maintenance and repair and replacement.

2018 Successes

Y YV VY

Implementation of Phase 1 Asset Management Program

. Modernization of a number of bylaws and policies

Regional collaboration and sub-regional collaboration with municipalities in
the Slocan Valley on issues of mutual interest

Completed a capital improvement project at the Silverton Gallery, with a
new mechanical heating and cooling system and a new fire suppression
system

Re-opened the Silverton Gallery building to the public and signed a lease
with the Slocan Lake Arts Council for the building

Purchased outdoor exercise equipment and engaged with local expertise
for best placement for circuit training

Continued Wildfire Mitigation

A funding program for a regional partnership in FireSmart and Emergency
Management

Completed 2018 Bull Trout survey, Bull Trout Wildlife Habitat Area (WHA)
proposal to province

Barlett Creek hydrogeomorphic assessment
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GrantThornton

An instinct for growth’

Grant Thornton LLP
513 Victoria Street

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT Nelson, BC

V1L 4K7

T +1 250 352 3185
F +1 250 352 7186

To the Mayor and Courncil
Corporation of the Village of Silverten

Opinion

We have audited the financial statemsnts of the Corporation of the Village of Silverton, (the Village),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018, and the statement of
operations, statement of changes in net financial assets and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting polices.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financlal position of the Corporation of the Village of Siiverton as at December 31, 2018, and its results
of operations, its changes in its net financial assets, and its cash flaws for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generaily accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Village in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believa that the audit evidence we have obiained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Other Matters

The financial statements of the Corporation of the Village of Silverton for the year ended

December 31, 2017, were audited by Berg Lehmann Chartered Professional Accountants who
expressed an unmaodified opinion on those statements on April 23, 2018,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the

Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparaticn of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management Is responsible for assessing the Village's ability to
continue as a geing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
golng cancern basis of accounting.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Village's financial reporting
process,

grantthorntan.ca




- Grant Thornton

An instinct for growth”

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our cbjectives ars to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
ars free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an guditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or efror and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisicns of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. As part of an audit in
accordance with Canadian generally accepied auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughcut the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidencs that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstafement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resuling from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

s Obtain an understanding of internal confral relevant of the Village's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion eon the
effsctivenaess of the Village's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disciosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
acceunting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Village's ability to
continue as a going concern, f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our audifor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report, Howevaer, future
events or conditions may cause the Village fo cease to continue as a going concemn.

* Evaluate the cverall presentation, structure and content of the financial statarnants, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matiers, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

gwm LLr

Chartered Professional Accountants
April 30, 2019

MNelson, B.C.




THE CORPORATION OF THE VILLAGE OF SILVERTON

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at December 31, 2018

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2)
Accounts receivable (Note 3)

Financial Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 4)
Deferred revenue (Note 5)

Net Financial Assets
MNon ~Financial Assets

Tangible capital assets (Note 6)
Prepaid expenses

Accumulated Sorplus (Note 7)
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 10)

o

Colin McClufe, CPA, CA
Chief Financial Officer

2018 2017
$§ 558,843 3 593,309
223,820 321.692
782.663 915.001
131,727 141,882
18.600 70.039
150327 211.921
632,336 703,080
2,787,220 2,564,805
19.825 21.618
2.807.045 2.586.423

$_3439381 §__3.289.503




THE CORPORATION OF THE VILLAGE COF SILVERTON

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

2013 Budget 2018 2017

(Note 11)

Revenue
Taxes $ 148,139 § 149,025 F 139,746
" Sale of services T 63,531 43,809 62,005
Other revenue from own sources 34,110 23,778 21,033
Investment income 1,500 4,646 5,689
Grants - unconditional . 273,000 281,261 273,009
Grants - conditional 528,366 320,308 632,413
Water user fees 73,839 74,288 70,405

Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets - 1,362 -

1,122,505 898.477 1,204,300

Expenses
General government 288,764 265,254 256,321
Protective services 242,900 130,603 71,615
Transporiation services : 134,472 125,584 129,997
Environmental health services 26,262 27,238 23,556
Parks, recreation and cultural services 68,600 44,524 57,528
Water utility operations 51,086 46,408 51,703
Amortization 115.535 108.988 111,961
927,619 748,599 702,681
Annual surplus 194,886 149,878 501,619
Accumulated surplus, beginning of the year 3,285,503 3.289.503 2,787,884
Accumulated surplus, end of the year 3,484,389 3439381 3.289.503

The accompanying summary of significnnt aceounting policies and notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial staterents




THE CORPORATION OF THE VILLAGE OF SILVERTON
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Annual surplus

Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Amortization of capital assets

Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets

(Gain) / loss on disposal of tangible capital assets

Use (acquisition) of prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in net financial assets

Net financial assets, beginning of year

Net financial assets, end of the year

The aceompanying summary of significant accounting poficies and notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

2018 Budgst 2018 2017
194,886 149,878 501,619
{412,500) (340,963) (669,342)
115,535 108.988 111.961

- 10,922 i

- (1.362) -
(102,079) (72,537) (55,762)
- 1.793 (9.902)
(102,079) (70,744) (65,664)
703,080 703,080 768,744
601.001 632.336 703,080




THE CORPORATION OF THE VILLAGE OF SILVERTON

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Cash Provided by (Used In)

Operating Activities
Annual surplus

Items not involving cash:
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets

Inerease (decrease) in non-cash operating items:

Accounts receivable

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue

Prepaid expenses

Capital Activities
Proceeds from disposal of tangible capital assets
Acquisition of tangible capital assets

Net increase (decrease) in Cash
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

2018 2017
149,878 § 501,619
108,988 111,961

1.362 ;
257.504 613,580
97,872 (274,725)
(10,155) 119,969
(51,439) (6,461)
1.793 (9.902)
295 575 442,461
10,922 -

(340.963) (669.342)
(34,466) (226,881)
593,309 820,190
558,843 §__ 593.309

The accompanying summary of significant acconnting policics and notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements




THE CORPORATION OF THE VILLAGE OF SILVERTON

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018

L. Significant Accounting Policies

The Corporation of the Village of Silverton (the Village) is a local government in the Province of
British Columbia. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards.

The following is a summary of the Village’s significant accounting policies:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(o)

Revenue Recognition

Sources of revenue are recorded on the acerual basis and include revenue in the period in
which the transactions or events occurred that give rise to the revenues. Taxation revenues
are recognized at the time of issuing the property tax notices for the fiscal year. Sale of
services and user fee revenues are recognized when the service or product is rendered by the
Village.

Grant revenues are recognized when the funding becomes receivable. Revenue unearned in
the current period is recorded as deferred revenue.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue represents funds received for specific purposes which are externally
restricted by legislation, regulation or agreement and are not available for general municipal
purposes as well as licenses, permits, other fees and grants which have been collected, but
for which the related services have not been performed and or projecis have not been
constructed. These amounts will be recognized as revenues in the fiscal year in which they
are used for the specified purpose, the services are performed and or the projects are
constructed.

Government Transfers

Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements as revenue in the period in
which events giving rise to the transfer occur, providing the transfers are authorized, any
eligibility criteria have been met and reasonable estimates can be made.

Financial Instruments

The Village’s financial instruments consist of cash and and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities. It is management’s opinion that the
Village is not exposed to significant interest, curtency or credit risks arising from these
financial instruments. The fair values of these financial instruments approximate their
carrying values.

Interest and Actuarial Gains on Long Term Debt

The Village records interest expense on long-term debt on an accrual basis and actuarial
gains when realized as a reduction of the principal balance.




THE CORPORATION OF THE VILLAGE OF SILVERTON

NOTES TQO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018

L. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

6

(=)

(h)

()

)

Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets, comprised of capital assets and capital assets under construction, are
recorded at cost and are classified according to their functional use. Amortization is
recorded on a straight-Hne basis over the estimated useful life of the asset commencing the
year the asset is put in to service. Donated tangible capital assets are reported at fair value
at the time of donation. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 40 years

Furniture, Equipment & Velicles 5to 10 years
Technology 5 years
Roads and Paving 40 years
Bridges and other Transportation Structures 4G years
Water Infrastructure 1010 40 vears

Non-Financial Assets

Non-financial assets aro not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in
the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are
not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.

Statutory Reserves

Statutory reserves are funds that have been resiricted by council. Formal establishing
bylaws have been adopted pursuant to the Community Charter, which define how these
reserves are to be used,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements,
and the reported revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant areas
requiring estimates include the useful lives of tangible capital assets for amortization, future
employee benefits, allowance for doubtful accounts and provision for contingencies. Actual
results could differ from management’s best estimates as additional information becomes
available in the future.

Budget

Budget data presented in these financial statements is based on the Village's Five Year
Financial Plan for the years 2018-2022, adopted by Council on May 10, 2018.




THE CORPORATION OF THE VILLAGE OF SILVERTON

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2018

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position are comprised of:

Cash
MFA bond and money market funds

2018 2017
$ 468,210 § 504,146
90.633 89.163
$ 558.843 § 593,309

Municipal Finance Authority (MFA) pooled investment funds are considered equivalent to cash

because of their liquidity.

3. Accounts Receivable

Propeity taxes

Utility billings

Other governments

Trade & other receivables

4, Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Trades payable _
Accrued wages and benefits

5. Deferred Revenue

Grants and other

2018 2017
$ 26,493 3 25,121
10,436 6,646
10,497 36,691
176.394 253234

$ 223820 § 321,692

2018 2017
$ 112921 § 1353893
18.806 5.989
§__ 131727 $___ 141882
2018 2017
$ 18.600 $ 70.039




THE CORPORATION OF THE VILLAGE OF SILVERTON

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018

6. Tangible Capital Assets
Accumulated 2018 Net 2017 Net

Cost Amortization Book Value  Book Value
Land $ 93,917 $ - $ 93,917 % 03,917
Buildings 1,470,654 465,798 1,004,856 732,249
Vehicles, equipment & furniture 268,936 217,900 51,036 68,264
Engineering infrastructure 644,871 269,204 375,667 357,835
Transportation infrastructure 301,730 203,942 97,788 105,331
Water machinery and equipment 65,897 45,335 20,562 20,268
‘Water infrastructure 1,770,311 626,917 1,143.394 1,186,941

$_4616316 $_1.829.096 §__ 2787220 §_ 2.564.805

See Schedule A - Statement of tangible capital assets for more information.

7. Accumulated Surplus
2018 2017

Operating
General § 247,746 § 227,106
Water 53.197 27285
- 300,943 254.391

Reserves

General 115,797 102,223
Water 10,343 10,292
Community works fund , 225.078 357.792
351,218 470,367
652,161 724,698
Invested in capital assets 2,787,220 2,564.805
Total Accumulated Surplus 3439381 3.280.503

3. Tazes Levied For Other Paid Authorities

In addition to taxes levied for municipal purposes, the Village is legally obligated to collect and
remit taxes levied for the following authorities. These collections and remittances are not recorded
as revenue and expenses in the Villages financial statements.

2018 - 2017
Provincial Government - School taxes $ 111,174 § 115,276
Provincial Government - Police taxes 11,636 11,510
Regional District of Central Kootenay 48,000 47,377
Central Kootenay Hospital District 12,571 13,021
British Columbia Assessment Authority _ 1,949 2,082
Municipal Finance Authority 9 9

$ 185339 § 189.275




THE CORPORATION OF THE VILLAGE OF SILVERTON
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018 '

10.

Pension Plan

The Village of Silverton and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (a jointly
trusteed pension plan). The board of trustees, representing plan members and employers, is
responsible for administering the plan, including investment of the assets and administration of
benefits. 'The plan .is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. Basic pension benefits
provided are based on a formula. As at December 31, 2017, the plan has about 197,000 active
members and approximately 95,000 retired members. Active members include approximately
39,000 contributors from local governments.

Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plan and
adequacy of plan funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and member
contribution rate to fund the plan. The actuary's caleulated contribution rate is based on the entry-
age normal cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member and employer contributions
sufficient to provide benefits for average future entrants to the plan. This rate may be adjusted for
the amortization of any actuarial funding surplus and will be adjusted for the amortization of any
unfunded actuarial liability. : :

The most recent valuation of the Municipal Pension Plan at December 31, 2015, indicated a $2,224
million funding surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis. As a result of the 2015
basic account actuarial valuation surplus and pursnant to the joint trustee agreement, $1,927 million
was transferved to the rate stabilization account and $297 million of the surplus ensured the required
contribution rates remained unchanged.

The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2018 with results available in 2019,

Employers participating in the plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer
contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is
becanse the plan records acerued liabilities and accrued assets for the plan in aggregate with the
result that there is no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to
individual employers participating in the plan.

The Village of Silverton paid $18,83% (2017 - $18,302) for employer contributions to the plan in
fiscal 2018.

Commitments and Contingencies
Regional District Debt

Regional District debt is under the provisions of the Community Charter of BC a direct, joint and
several liability of the District and each member municipality within the District including the
Village of Silverton. '

Reciprocal Insurance Exchange Agreement

The Village is a subscribed member of the Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia
(The “Fxchange™) as provided by Section 3.02 of the Insurancé Act of British Columbia. The main
purpose of the exchange is to pool the risks of Hability so as to lessen the impact upon any
subscriber. Under the Reciprocal Insurance Exchange agreement, the Municipality is assessed a
premium and specific deductible based on population and claims experience. The obligation of the
Municipality with respect to the Exchange and/or contracts and obligations entered into by the
Exchange on behalf of its subscribers in connection with the Exchange are in every case several and
not joint and several. The Village irrevocably and unconditionally undertakes and agrees to
indemnify and save harmless the other subscribers against liability losses and costs which the other
Subscriber may suffer.




THE CORPORATION OF THE VILLAGE OF SILVERTON
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018

11.  Budget Data

The reconciliation of the approved budget for the current year to the budget figures reported in these
financial statement is as follows:

2018
Budget surplus per Statement of Operations $ 194,886
Less: Capital expenditures 412,500
Budgeted transfers to surplus and reserves 4,898
Add: Budgeted transfers from reserves 106,977
Amortization 115.535

Net annual budget $ .
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Statement of Financial Information (SOFT)

THE CORPORATION OF THE VILLAGE OF SILVERTON
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION APPROVAL

We, the undersigned, approve the attached statements and schedules included in this
Statement of Financial Information, produced under the Financial Information Act.

Jason Clarke
Mayor

Colin McClure, CPA, CA
Chief Financial Officer

Prepared as required by Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, section 9




Statement of Financial Information (SOFT)

THE CORPORATION OF THE VILLAGE OF SILVERTON
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018

MANAGEMENT REPORT

The Financial Statements contained in this Statement of Financial Information under the
Financial Information Act have been prepared by management in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles and the integrity and objectivity of these
statements are management's responsibility.

Management is also responsible for all other schedules of financial information and for
ensuring this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information contained
in the financial statements and for implementing and maintaining a system of internal
contrels to provide reasonable assurance that reliable financial information is produced.

The Mayor and Council are responsible for ensuring that management fulfils its
responsibilities for financial reporting and internal control and for approving the financial
information included in the Statement of Financial Information.

The external auditors, Grant Thornton, Chartered Professional Accountants, conduct an
independent examination, in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, and
express their opinion on the financial statements. Their examination does not relate to
the other schedules of financial information required by the Financial Information Act.
Their examination includes a review and evaluation of the City's system of internal
control and appropriate tests and procedures to provide reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are presented fairly. ' '

On behalf of The Corporation of the Village of Silverton

Colin McClure, CPA, CA
Chief Financial Officer
June 11, 2019

Prepared as required by Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, section 9




Statement of Financial Information (SOFT)

THE CORPORATION OF THE VILLAGE OF SILVERTON
Fiscal Year Ended December 31,2018

SCHEDULE OF DEBT

Information on all long term debt is included in the Audited Financial Statements of The
Corporation of the Village of Silverton. ' '

Prepared as required by Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, section 4




Statement of Financial Informa-tion (SOFI)

THE CORPORATION OF THE VILLAGE OF SILVERTON
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018

SCHEDULE OF GUARANTEE AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENTS

The Corporation of the Village of Silverton has not given any guarantees or indemnities
under the Guarantees and Indemnities Regulation.

Prepared under the Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, section 5




Statement of Financial Information (SOFI)

THE CORPORATION OF THE VILLAGEOF SILVERTON
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2017

STATEMENT OF SEVERANCE AGREEMENTS

There was no severance agreements made between The Corporation of the Village of
Silverton and its non-unionized employees during the fiscal year ended December 31,
2018. :

Prepared under the Financial Information Regulation, Schedule [, subsection 6(8)




The Corporation of the Village of Silverton
PAYMENT TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT RECONCILIATION
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018

S.O.F.1L Report Scheduled Pavments

Remuneration _ $221,925
Employee Expenses : 13,624
Employer CPP/E] 13,461

Payments for Goods and Services

Total of Scheduled Payments
Total of Financial Statement Expenditures

The difference between the Total of Scheduled Payments and the Total Financial
Statements Expenditures are due to;

Adjustments to account for the difference between payments made on a cash
basis, and the audited financial statements reporting expenditures on an accrual
basis of accounting. This would include adjustments for opening and closing
balances of inventories, prepaid expenses, and accrued liabilities.

List of payments to suppliers include 100% GST while the expenditures in the

financial statements are net of the applicable GST rebate,

Capital expenditures arc shown as payments.to the vendor in this report.

However, the total financial statement expenditures do not reflect these

payments as they report amortization of all the capital assets.

The Schedule of Payments of Goods and Services includes payments made on
behalf of third parties, which are recovered from these parties and the expense is
excluded from the Financial Statements.

Payments to some suppliers are reported directly to the Balance Sheet and
therefore are not reported as expenditures

$ 249,010
_793.684

$1,042.,694

3 748.599

Prepared under the Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, subsection 6(2d) and subsection 7(1b)




THE CORPORATION OF THE VILLAGE OF SILVERTON
SCHEDULE OF REMUNERATION AND EXPENSE
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

NAME REMUNERATION ~ EXPENSE
ELECTED COFFICIALS | POSITION '
Bell, Carol Councillor $ 2633 % 1427
Christian, Bill Councillor 2,633 -
Clarke, Jason Mayor : 4.417 7,533
Main, Leah Councillor 2,633 1,666
Yofonoff, Arlene Councillor : 2,633 -
TOTAL ELECTED OFFICIALS : 14,849 10,626
DETAILED EMPLOYEES > $75,000 ' $ - 8 -
TOTAL EMPLOYEES <= $75,000 : ' 208,978 2,998
206,976 2,998
TOTAL . $ 221,925 $§ 13,624
TOTAL EMPLOYER PREMIUM FOR CPP/El $ 13,4861

Prepared under the Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, section 6 to subsection 6(6)




THE CORPORATION OF THE VILLLAGE OF SILVERTON

SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS OF GOODS AND SERVICES
- YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

DETAILED SUPPLIERS >$25,000
SUPPLIER NAME

BC Hydro

City of Nelson

. Great Qutdoor Gym Ltd.

Ministry of Finance

Venture Mechanical Stystems Ltd.
Village of New Denver

TOTAL DETAILED SUPPLIERS >$25,000

TOTAL SUPPLIERS <= $25,000

TOTAL SUPPLIERS

GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS >$25,000

T-OTAL PAYMENTS, GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS

Prepared under the Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, section 7(1) and (2)

$

EXPENSE

42,607
30,013
33,979
29,794

320,581
07,835

484,809
308,875

793,684

793,684
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BC Rural Health Network

Membership Form

As a member of the BC Rural Health Network, l/we support the following purpose and guiding
principles of the Network:

Purpose:
To promote and support a health care system that improves and sustains the health and well
being of residents of rural communities across British Columbia as part of a high functioning
health care system.

Guiding Principles:

+ All British Columbians are entitled to efficiently provided, timely and effective
healthcare services.

» While the rural communities of BC differ widely in terms of needs, desires, strengths,
challenges and distinctive characters they share many concerns regarding obstacles to
essential healthcare services.

« Residents in rural communities are recognized as authorities on what is best for their
community. Grassroots healthcare advocacy organizations exist in rural communities
because of the recognized need to improve services.

« Improvement to services will result from collaborative, cooperative relationships developed :
between community organizations, health authorities, local elected officials, local health
workers, and provincial policy makers. 1

+ Together we present a strong and unified voice for change.

Membership Categories i

Regular Members

« any person, organization or association that support the purpose, principles, and objectives of
the BCRHN is eligible to become a Regular Member.

+ Regular Members are entitled to make motions, vote and/or hold office as Directors, receive
minutes of all meetings, and receive written financial statements.




Associate Members

« provincial organizations, associations or individuals that support the purpose, principles, and
objectives of the BCRHN are eligible to become Associate Members.

» Associate Members are not entitled to make motions, vote or hold office as Directors.

« Associate Members are entitied to receive minutes of all meetings and written financial
statements as presented at the AGM

Affiliate Members

- provincial organizations that wish to participate as an observer and provide support to the
BCRHN are eligible to become Affiliate Members

« Affiliates may be included in meetings and activities at the discretion of the Board.

» Affiliates are not entitled to make motions, vote or hold office as Directors.

Membership Fees

Membership fees are due upon receipt of the membership form. The membership renewal date is
June 1st. The inability to pay a membership fee will never exclude anyone from becoming a
member of the BCRHN.

RBegular Member

Organization $50.00
Individual $30.00

Associate Member

Organization $30.00
Individual $25.00

Affiliate Member $20.00




BC Rural Health Network

Membership Application Form

Name of Organization or Individual:
Membership category (see below):
____ Regular Member

___ Associate Member
. Affiliate Member
Contact information:

email:

telephone:

Names and titles of lead members in the organization:

How many members in your organization?

Names of communities represented by your organization:




Membership Categories

Regular Members

« organizations or associations that support the purpose, principles, and objectives
of the BCRHN are eligible to become Regular Members.

- an individual may apply to the Board to become a Regular Member,

+ Regular Members are entitled to make motions, vote and/or hold office as
Directors.

+ Regular Members are entitled to receive minutes of all meetings of the BCRHN,
including General Mestings, Board Meetings, and the AGM.

+ Regular Members are entitled to receive written financial statements as presented
at the AGM.

Associate Members

» provincial organizations, associations or individuals that support the purpose,
principles, and objectives of the BCRHN are eligible to become Associate
Members.

« Associate Members are not entitled to make motions, vote or hold office as
Directors.

Affiliates

« Affiliates are provincial organizations who wish to participate as an observer and
provide support to the BCRHN.

« Affiliates are not paying members and may be included in meetings and activities
at the discretion of the Board.

« Affiliates are not entitled to make motions, vote or hold office as Directors.




BCRHN Membership Application Form

Date of Application (year/month/date):

Membership category (check one).

__ Regular Member
___ Associate Member
____ Affiliate Membar

Name of Organization or Individual;

Contact information:

email: telephone:

postal address: postal code

Names and titles of lead members in the organization:

How many members in your organization?

Names of communities represented by your organization:

Membership fee enclosed: $

Please consider making an additional donation in support of the BCRHN. Donation amount
enclosed: $

Are you willing to volunteer? Please express your interest by checking one or more of the following
areas of expertise or experience:

{1finance

] communications

] promotional

] organizing

O other




people. planning. positive change.

Dear Mayor and Council:
RE: Access Awareness Day — June 1, 2019

June 1, 2019 is Access Awareness Day! Access Awareness Day provides an cpportunity to look at our communities
and reflect on ways to make them more accessible and inclusive for everyone! Access Awareness Day is part of
National AccessAbility Week which takes place from May 26 to June 1, 2019.

As part of National AccessAbility Week, the goal Is to recognize the efforts of individuals and communities that are
actively removing barriers such that Canadians of all abilities have the best chance to succeed! The theme Ffor this
year's Access Awareness Day is “Accessibility Makes Communities Complete’. As part of this year's planning, our goal
is to draw attention to accessibility as being integral to where people live, work; learn and play.

Each year, as part of our annual Access Awareness Day campaign we reach out to lacal governments and community
partners to learn more about the work that they are doing to ensure that all citizens are able to share their talents,
experiences and abilities in all aspects of community life ~ sccial, physical, cultural, economic, and recreational.
Please find enclosed thirty {30} copies of pasters that have been developed to help build increased public awareness
and support around accessibility and to recognize the importance of working together to ensure that everyone is
included. Please share these posters with your local library, your accessibility committee, your department of parks
and recreation and other local partners, Also, please do not hesitate to request additional posters.

| am also pleased to announce that this year, the Government of Canada's Secial Development Partnerships Program
— Disability component as well as the Ministry of Social Development and Poverty Reducticn have made $500 in
funding available to municipalities and community-based disability groups who are holding local accessibility
events. If you are planning an event, please do not hesitate to reach out to share your ideas and to request this
Funding. We know that by building accessibility we are creating stronger and healthier communities.

Email us at abattalova@sparc.be.ca or fweet us at @SPARCBC to request funding for your event or to requast
additional materizals or posters.

Thank you for the part that you play in helping to make our
communities more accessible and inclusive for everyone!

Sincerely

7

Alfiya Battalova

Manager of Accessibility Initiztives, SPARC BC

soclal planning & research council of british columbia
4445 Norfolk St., Burnaby, BC, Y56 0A7, Canada T: 6G04-718-7733, 1-888-718-7794; F. 604-735-8697
www.sparc.be.ca
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KOOTENAY

CANNABIS
SYMPOSIUM

Kootenay Cannabis Symposium - Report, reflections and summary

On October 18th 2018, Cannabis was legalized in Canada. This landmark decision created a new era for a
plant that has spent the last 95 years in prohibition. Over the last 40 years, communities around BC developed
an economy and culture intrinsic to cannabis. In light of the new legal framework, concern is prevalent
regarding the livelihood of individuals, families and communities.

In response to these concerns the Kootenay United Cannabis Association was formed, ‘To unite, protect, and
advocate for the cannabis industry within the Kootenay region of British Columbia by supporting the right to a
fair and reasonable transition into the legal market. Ensuring economic security and prosperity for our region

and continued access to a growing market for our products.’

On April 11th, 2019, the Kootenay United Cannabis Association (KUCA) organized and hosted the Kootenay
Cannabis Symposium gathering over 200 stakeholders at the Prostige Lakeside Inn, in Nelson, BC, to talk
about the barriers and challenges of transitioning into the legal cannabis industry, and to workshop potential
solutions. The symposium was comprised of members from the local industry, delegates from various levels of
government, academics and non-governmental organizations. Although attendance was mostly regional,
some participants came from across the country to attend the event.

This event represented the first occasion that the cannabis community assembled to discuss how it wanted to
address the impacts/opportunities presented by cannabis legalization. The current legalization framework is
posing drastic consequences to the socio economic wellbeing of rural communities in BC. It is imperative that
the perspectives of all the stakeholders, particularly those held by members of the preexisting cannabis
industry, be considered at both federal and provincial levels.

Support and Attendance

Participation in the event was considered substantial with two thirds of the event attended by local cultivators
and processors. Although it is important to note that the most vulnerable populations from the industry were
under-represented. This is a cross-section of the community that sees the least hope or simply does not have
the immediate capacity to meet compliance requirements.

In attendance was Health Canada’s Joanne Garrah, Director of Licensing and Security, Controlled Substances
and Cannabis Branch. She prasented the latest update from Health Canada. She was able to engage directly
with a number of participants after her presentation and is keen to receive the report of findings that will come




from the event. It was a wonderful opportunity to have such a well-respected representative from Health
Canada in the room as the lead federal department managing the Cannabis file.

The BC Cannabis Legalization and Regulation Secretariat (Ministry of Public Safety and Solicitor General) was
represente'd by Mary Shaw, Executive Lead, and Wendy Norris, Senior Policy Manager. Ms. Shaw presented
the latest update from their department. Together they participated in the day's agenda and were able to hear
firsthand about barriers and solutions from participants. The Cannabis Secretariat is in the midst of a
consultation process that will be informed by the content of the symposium.

Regional Rural Development Managers Richard Topeczer, Gerri Brightwell and Larry Olson from BC FLNRD
Ministry were enlisted to help facilitate break-out sessions. In addition to their contribution to the event, they

received the benefit of bearing witness to the scale and inner workings of the local industry. This experience
informs them about what sector development work can be done to support the industry in transition.

The event was moderated by Brittny Anderson, from Nelson City Council and co-founder of the Cannabis
Conservancy. Ron LeBlanc (Slocan Valley Economic Development Partnership/RDCK) and Meeri Durrand
(RDCK Planning Department), participated as presenters and facilitators. Ms. Durand also participated in the
afternoon panel discussion.

Others in attendance included Walter Popoff (RDCK Director, Area H), Jessica Lunn (Mayor of Slocan} Tom
Zeleznik (Mayor of Nakusp) and Colin Moss (New Denver Town Coungilor).

It was a mutually beneficial event in that local residents and industry members witnessed the engagement and
felt the support of their local government representatives. While elected officials got an inside look into this
sector, along with the opportunities and threats that hinge upon how the region’s cannabis industry moves
forward.

The symposium was supported and attended by Community Futures, Nelson and District Chamber of
Commerce and Selkirk College’s Community Education and Workforce Training. Tracey Harvey from Selkirk
College and the University of Guelph was an active co-organizer, presenter and facilitator of the day. Her PhD
academic research is focused on examining how to effectively transition to the new rural cannabis economy.
Abra Brynne of The Food Policy Council was an active advisor, facilitator and hostess of the afternoon panel
discussion entitled ‘Moving Forward'. Her years of researching and reporting on food policy was a valuable
asset to the day, giving tangible references to case studies in which we could draw similarities from.

Presentations

The schedule for the day included informative presentations followed by facilitated workshops.

Ron LeBlanc, the Slocan Valley Economic Development Coordinator, offered a summary of his report entitled
‘Slocan Valley Cannabis Synopsis - The Business of Transition’ which assesses the state of the industry and
the potential impacts of legalization in the Slocan Valley. His anecdotal analysis suggests that many of the
local cultivators will be prohibited from transitioning within the current framework.

Ron’s leadership shows courage in bringing these concerns to the awareness of government.

Paul Kelly from Community Futures Central Kootenay (CFCK) spoke about the CFCK's commitment to
transitioning industry and noted the significant effect that dollars generated by the cannabis community have
had in creating a robust Kootenay economy.

He touched on the free “Cannabis Business Planning “101" class they've been running in conjunction with the
RDCK. Their aim is to teach potential market entrants some basics around zoning and development permits,




Health Canada applications, basic legal business opsrations (Cash flow planning, GST, PST, Excise tax, BC
employment standards, bookkeeping and payroll requirements), as this will be new to many transitioning
growers.

He also outlined some of the additional supports CFCK is here to provide — Business foans, community
business counselling, business training classes, and WorkBC's Self-Employment Program.

Tracey Harvey from Selkirk College and the University of Guelph offered an invaluable contribution to the day’s
content. She outlined salient points on the risks of not intentionally transitioning rural, historically producing
cannabis economies and the need for genuine stakeholder participation during such a complex process that
can deeply affect a mostly hidden, and underrepresented group. Highlighting how rural cannabis stakeholders
have not been heard or understood during federal and provincial policy formulation and how these
stakeholders are imperative to involve in partnership for equitable policy. She also discussed proven
transitional economic strategies, which the Kootenay region is particularly well suited because of the top shelf
quality craft cannabis that comes from this region, as well as the extensive experiential knowledge and strong
social capital. Her final recommendation, o collaborate as a region to develop a cannabis cluster of economic
innovation and knowledge generation is a functional strategy that should be driven by stakeholders, including

industry.

David Robinson, board member of the BC Craft Cannabis Association has tong standing relationships with
many stakeholders in the cannabis industry. His garden store Pacific Northwest has been the main supplier for
many in the industry. Known as the Garden Sage, David has been guiding people regarding cultivation
practices for many years. David Robinson is a face that everyone in the local industry knows and trusts after
years of business together.

He presented his thoughts on the importance of transitioning this industry and provided an estimate that
25,000 kilograms of high quality product is produced a year in this region. His optimistic vision is built upon
twenty years of relationships with his customers, knowing that the Kootenay region holds the most knowledge
- and experience to preduce the highest quality product. Given the proper tools and support from all levels of
government he is assured that the Kootenay region will thrive.

Josh and Kelly Dunn of Dragonfly Earth Medicine and the Pure Collective are known internationally in the
industry. They advocate for the plant and promote the case for growing regenerative cannabis on small farms.
With a worldwide collective of Peer Certified farmers they have an informed perspective on the consequences
of legalization in various regions across North America. Though they warn of a painful transition as the global
industry opens up, they assert that sun grown, sustainable cannabis and hemp, collective cooperation and
value added products will establish the most resilient path forward.

The Common Challenges and Barriers

The morning workshops were designed to identify the barriers faced by participants who are transitioning to the
iegal cannabis market. These sessions were developed to make room for a wide diversity of perspectives
including the voices of cultivators and processors in their various capacities, local organizations, government
reprasentatives, academics, retailers and ancillary businesses.

By allowing participants to express their concerns and remain nameless, insight was gained regarding how
regulations are impacting individuals on a personal level. This is significant. As Ron LeBlanc points out, there
are various levels of capacity fo transitioning. The experiential feedback demonstrates how policy is, and isn't,
working and how different groups are affectad and impacted.




Partlcipants were invited to fill in personal werksheets. Followed by a collective sharing process that divided
their points into four categories: Federal Barriers, Provincial Barriers, Local Government Barriers, Human
Resources/Business/Finance Included here is a distilled and interpreted selection of the workshop sheets.

Barriers/Challenges to fransitioning

e Federal ' B B _-,'Provinn_::_ial.,j.' g
. Lackofclearand accessrblellcensrng lnformatlon e L

- Ardund application progess: complrance o "Restnctlve ALR regulahons .
bu||d|ng requrrernents sop 3. Non Farm use vanance Provmclal

Coln ALR creates a serles of lssues (see '
appendrx) '

fa (s ohallenglng toe engage the ALC

. Prohtbmve llcensmg cost and taxat!on schemes for
' small entrepreneurs : :

_D___-_'Hrghfees taxes compllance costs cost of ) o
. 'j}new builds and testlng A e Lack of Provmcral support for smaII busrness

7o Taxation'ls ot reasonable for micros s which _development o

‘should- be based on potentlal output for year. e o Call for prlce control measures to . ' _
' ' : . 'effectwely compete wrth the ||I|c|t market '

C o._{' The dlsconnect bétween the various levels :
: ~and- create certa inty around rarket value
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b ttleneoks forthe small entrepreneur as
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_Wrth no plan to transl’uon e;cstlng economy, i ,:Centrahzed dlstrlbutron lssues o
-pre- existing facilities.have to shut down, and LA D|strlbut|onthrough LDEl 8 :
- face a lack oftundlng opportunltres requi re_d_ rvironmentally unsustalnab[e and. S

: .--for new—budds and land purchase."lease Gl
: |nequttable economlcalty, and loglstlcally

. Ineffectlve mlcrob|al testlng

Plate cultures add a srgmficant amount of
timeto.the process threshold levels .- "
: unreallstlc and |mpedes organro productlon

n plan for pre—exrst g entrepreneurs

: Preexrstlng small farmers do not have
capaolty to! transrtron and are left wrth no .
'-v1able optlon to transltlon o Ol
Preexrstlng small farmers have nc support S
~“around protecting thelr valuable genetlcs |n S
~the legal landsoape s

® Marketlng and brandlng restrlotlons

ie Do not allow for dltferentlat fon of small craft B
PR and artisan producers :

S Restnctwe hemp regulatlons

T e 'l'Hempthat is under’ the samelrcensrng as

“v cannabis will debllrtate Canada's:

_="':compet|tlveness on world market (re with Iost

: ‘Z.opportunltles) as well due to Ilmlted stralns
Vallowed, o T :




* Local Go’vemrn_ent '

‘Limited local control and capac|ty

o - Local governmenttstasked with .
: addressmg the roll-out of the legal
cannabis |ndustry, but with limited tools
 dua'tg the overarchmg and restr;ctwe '
leglslatlon of senior governments '

o N Results in‘an tnabmty for’ locally derlved

’ place—based solutlons most appropnate for |

Unigue rural places

-~ Revenue shartng between prownce and Iocal

| goverhments’ remams undetermmed

.o Thrs needs to be addressed as 800N s -,
B possmleto mcrease incentive and reeson
“to develop local pollcy for sector -

development including issues of water and

' y land rlghts and access..

-M|ssrng clant"catlon regardlng Justice equlty - .
* -programs and level of enforcement for transmonmg j '
. careas . - : e -

C 9 aNo accommodatlon of pre-e)ustlng mdustry '

. particrpants

-a - Addressthe trust issues of those who are :

- the'most vulnerable because of potential -

_ '1exposure of themselves and thelr famllles :
ol :Amnesty is- requwed tc create a more

'_:.partl clpatory env:ronm ent

N lVl|cro license busmess wabmty concerns : ',ﬁ-.:

HR.lBusinesleinance L

Traln ng and educatmnal challenges _
o Need foradequatetralnlngm Health .
. Canada procedures forstaff(Master o
T ].Growers etc) ' o
4" Provide support to transttlon work
T -_force acqun’eWCB address CRA
. reqwrements and standard labor
S procedures S : R
-6 Address lack of b_
g 'jtra|n|ng

; ine‘s‘s s,kills &‘ o

SR Address capac|ty llmltatlons through'-

'appllcatlon support and by prowdlng

7 access to capltal R
BN 'Support issug of seasonalrty of outdoor

: ='productlon and staff avatlabihty |

. Revisit testing- standards and r|sk of
L fa|lures : oy

: 0 El!mmate predatory consultancy costs * :
. farmers: face because of-the arduous
apphcatton process by prowdlng R
_support for appllcat fon. e
"o .. Address |nequ1table access to busmess
L advice and- supply agreement P
) consultatlon ST o
0 - \Address srgn|flcant CRA requrrements
“ i that are prohrbltlve for a sm all busmess

: '4:Help W|th challenges around flndlng ke
: _leg|t|mate investors’ andlor fundlng
_;'-‘grants (like h

Data Crunch

22 tables took part in the facilitated workshops to identify barriers and challenges. With the intention of
removing repetitive comments and streamlining the categories, a committed team of data processors compiled
and summarized the information over lunch. As the symposium reconvened we were able to buy time for the
team to complete their process with the sharing of some local grassroots cannabis culture poetry. Though not
as timely as we had imagined, the data was processed and Tracey Harvey represented the findings to the
larger group. A link to photographs of the original work sheets have been posted along with this report on our
website,




Solutions Work shopping -

The data processed from the first session identified an overwhelming amount of feedback concerning
the Federal Regulations. We felt it necessary to adapt the second workshop to provide ample
opportunity to share ideas and solutions regarding federal issues.

Once again, individual worksheets were geared towards identifying personal perspectives. Asking
participants to reflect on key barriers and suggest potential solutions to address them. The room was
divided into groups which collectively compiled solutions and ideas in response to identified barriers.
Participants were also given time to offer feedback solutions on other categories (provincial, local etc)
below is a distilling of the top issues from each category.

The format for these discussions, although limited, supplied a sampling of ideas. These have been
edited to a degree though some may remain vague in explanation. This Report will seek to develop
upon a selection of the last section of the report. .

The collective worksheets on barriers/challenges and solutions can be found in the attached appendix'
or is available for download on the website under KUCA Symposium Report

Federal Regulations

" Establish a Health Canada mtake process to
clear up any questmns on appllcatlon elements

s Lack of clear accessable hcensmg SRR _and process . _
' 1nformat1on S U1 e lncrease dedicated: cannabls representatwes :
' ' ' : whocan be contacted for timely assistance to -

questions -

e Create accessible information pack'a'ges .
* Streamline process to be more timely
®  Hire more staff to process questions a"nd- -
applications '
" & Pravide federal building standards and SOP -
examples to follow:




_Prohibitive licensing cost and taxation schemes

for small entrepreneurs

' Suggestion to implement a smaller license class.

to address the needs of smaller cultivators

Allow for stacked micro licensing: that includes
nursery, cultivating and processing operations for
entrepreneurs and artisans to maintain boutique
advantage, opportunities to support tourism and

,‘farmgate sales.
" Examine small farm livestock licensing for

appllcataon to the cannabrs industry

Suggest Health Canada commits to a goal to
achieving a certain number of llcensed micros by

-end of 2019
_Suggest a quota for m1cro system,

Unrealistic canopy size for micro license class

Suggestron to Increase canopy sizé for indoors to

- double, and outdoors to guadrupled, to support a
- yiable busmess which is prone to crop failure,
-"and when sUngrown, limited to one crop per’ -

Ineffective microbial testing

year.

_'GPCR tests more effectwe at 1dent1fy1ng specrﬁc

pathogens, qu1cker turnaround times and more

~ flexible for allowing beneficial m1crobes (moare
B sultable for orgamcs) .

Consult smaller producers as to what works for
"_them : ' : )

support for more locahzed labs .

:"-_Drfferentlate between pathogemc and non-.
pathogemc rmcrobes

o Allow_forz non__\pathogemc’ microbes - |

® No transition plan for pre-existing entrepreneurs

- Supoort a s"taged transition for éxisting A'CMPR'
- holders so they can reallstrcally transrtton over a
By number of years.. :

. Focus on testing complrance s0 those
---transrtromng can get product to market and
: -meet supply demand and pay taxes.

' Recommend an amnesty period for those that
:'-are in transrtron or retraining to encourage
prevrous partlmpants to transmon .
' _-Consrder equity program like that is employed by
- The City of Sacramento CA which _prioritizes

- previous mdustry and charges zéro apphcatlons
- fees.




Restrictive hemp regulations -

Allow for more strain diversity.

Remove hemp licensing fromsame classrfrcatron
as Cannabis, or make security and hcensmg
process simpler to open the various low risk
benefits the plant can bring to small farmers.
Suggest the Ministry of Agnculture handles the

cannabis program to allow for access to exrstmg
programs,

Branding and Marketing is too restrictive -

© micro?)

Some allowance to differentiate for micros
Allow for smaller brands (micros) to tell story
Certification brandmg (regeneratwe orgamc,

Provincial Requlations

; Re'Stric_ti\)e ALR "'re_gu'ljetjons

Allow for more'reasonob‘le pfocess i de_te_rmining'ALR
land use for cannabis p'roductton Suggestion
~for indoor. cannabis production on ALRto -~
perhaps be based on land quality, local,
, agncultural economy, and grandfathenng
hrstoncal sites

_Suggest more greenhouse desrgn optrons with
“open floor or permeable floor with perimeter
-foundations for more high technology options :
that can produce multtple Crops per year

Advocate for better. response times and more
responsive relatlonshrps with ALC.

. Centralized distribution issues

Ailow for iocahzed dlstrlbutron

Create reg;onal testing facilities, then aliow
drrect sales to outlets or drop sh1 ppmg costs

Farmgate and online sales for micro. :
entrepreneurs Examine meat sales licenses for
smal] farms as a potentlal model to emulate
which ensures safety and traceability.




¢ lack of Provincial support for small business
development/Price controls/ Retall concems
and bottlenecks

* Suggestion to move the cannabis portfolio into
Ministry of Agriculture or thstry of Jobs,
. Trade; Technology

o Advocate for more local control over micré:
ticensing in BC because of its pre-legalization
“importance to prov1nc1al economy. and society
¢ Create a provincial task force to address

federal licensing and mdustry Concerns for
small entrepreneurs

* Need for transparent and honest education

* Provide an educatlon program that supports

- industry

commumtles to transition. S
Raise awareness of economic 1rnportance of

E_du'cate to rerndve traditiona_l s_tigmas and.c'rea_te
a more balanced display of health risks/benefits,

Local Government

L1m1ted local control and capacity:

o Local government is tasked with
addressmg the roll-out of the legal
can_na_b15 industry; but W}th limited tools 5

due to the overarching and restrictive. -~

o 'leglslatlon of senior governments _
o Results m an abji l1ty for locally denved

place- based solutions mast approprlate o

for unique rural places

~Advocate to the provincial government to create
_.gu1de1mes for micro hcenses wrth appropnate '
‘zoning recommendatlons

' Grandfather ex1st1ng operat1ons

- local and small town opportumttes

Local government agenmes need to be supported '

S in makmg decisions that promote respectful ahd
“inclusive industry development that support the -

health and well- bemg of their commun1t1es ‘

Encourage and support collaboratlon w1th other
.local governments - :

Local government should play a supportlve role .
in dialogues between local applicants and ALC"
for a more locahzed discernment of land use

Consider utilizing existing models of micro- - =
brewery and wmery tourlsm to apply to thlS
sector - . : . .

Permlt consumptlon lounges further creatmg

-Encourage regional government lnvolvement in
supportlve roles for busmess development and
-education. -




»  Revenue sharing between province and local ® [Establish revenue share of excise tax to support
gover_nments remains undetermined. local governments that are interested in-
o - " developing a cannabis industry
* This needs to be addressed as soon as possible to ' a

- increase incentive and reason to develop local - *  Support lotal government investment through
policy and place specific sector development as R&D, tourism, grants for community based
well address water and land rights and access. - -projects (to encourage involvement and

investment for long term success)

. Exphatly accommoc!ate pre- exrstmg industry

_- Missing clarification regarding justice, equity participants

- programs and level of enforcement for
transitioning areas » . Address trust issues of those who are the most

vulner_able because of potential exposure of
themselves and their families '

~-® " Amnesty is required to create a more
-~ participatory environment
* - Establish guidelines for how municipalities can
regulate the industry based on user expenence_
and safety, rather than enforcement

e Support a staged transitional period for pre-
ex1st1ng mdustry partlcrpants

. Explmtly protect those that are most
- dependent and vulnerable durmg this
transition (familiés , single parents, -elders)

Human Resources/ Business/ Finance

o Trammg and educational challenges ' e 'Create programs to support mdustry in acqumng
o - Need for adequate training in Health - necessary training
* Canada procedures for staff (Master * Create a (local) Selkirk College Cannabis Facility
_ Growers, etc...) . . | o eg. To train QA’s to HC requirements
.0 Address lack of business skills & training - s C(Creats; distribute and share resources as related
o Prowde support to transition work force, - to QA staff SOP’s and GPP’s
' 'acqur re WCB, and address CRA . »  Consider creating a hub to manage shared
~ requiréement’s and standard labor resources and services like transport sérvices,
o procedures o - and staff sharing: :

+  Offer Business Training 101




Micro llcense busmess v1abll1ty concerns

o Address capacity limitations by provrdlng
access to capital and help finding
legitimate investors and/or funding,
grants (like other sectors)

©  Revisit testing standards to help reduce
risk of failures

o E[iminate'preda_t_ory consultancy costs by
providing support for applications

o Address inequitable access to business

_advice and supply agreement
consultation™” " -

o . Address s1gn1f1carat CRA requlrements

that are prohibitive for a small business .

©  Overcome restrictions around branding

o Support issue of seasonality of outdoor
productlon and staff avariabrhty L

Advocate for sing:,leIStac'ked license that entails
nursery, cultwatron and processmg for micro
license apphcants ' :

Promote farmgate sales and drop
shipping/ distribution requlrements and costs for
micro license apphcants

Support tourism as’ value added growth to
businesses :

Work collaboratwely and reglonally to create a-
regional brand - :

Partner with exrsting local Certifications
Creaté and promote reglonal appellatrons such as

‘common with wine -

Advocate for d1fferen_t supply management. -

‘structure for micro’s who canriot absorb the

same degree of fisk'as corporate large LP's -

'Apphcatton gmdes must be made avaﬂable to
"help avoid consultlng fees

‘Wave fee for first year and’ 1mplement servrce '

standards - b1ll in arrears

Focus on productlon practrces locahzed testmg, :
~ and traceability of product by allowing direct

sales system for micro’s {which reduces maJor
public safety concerns expenenced by large

~ centralized operatlons)

Promote {ocaL busmess models that support
healthy wages to sustam lwrng standards

Support for the creatron of Co- -Ops {p roducer and
worker- owned) collectwes and clusters of '

businesses. .
‘Consider umomzatlon

Consider government sanotlons on large
corporations prohiibiting lmport deals and glwng

_ Canadians at least a 5 year head startin the
" cannabis busmess ' :

Interpreting the data

A significant amount of common ground was shared during the event, yet the primary intent of the day was to
address the hurdles being experienced by the Micro license applicants, and/or those within the pre-existing
cannabis economy wanting to transition to the legal market. Due to the prevalent nature and important




community structure involving families, the success of a transition for these smaller cultivaiors is imperative to
the well-being of the regional economy. There is a focus on those attempting the application process, but we
will also be addressing the perspectives of those that are not seeing a path to transitioning. The following
paragraphs will seek to develop and examine some of the key content from the barrier and solutions data, yet it

should be noted that this content is interpreted by KUCA.

Again, the raw worksheets can be accessed through the KUCA website for reference.

Policy does not support Rural B.C. Communities

the general feedback from our work shopping suggests that the majority of the challenges come from the
Federal Regulations. Overwhelmingly the data shows a lack of consideration on the part of policy makers of
the existing cannabis econamy.

We are faced with federal policy that is unrealistic for most to navigate. From the perspective of policy
analysts, the regulations are not designed with the goal of having small farmers succeed. The policies are
clearly written for corporate entities and did not take into account the grassroots or historic rural communities
that rely on the cannabis economy. Indeed, rural communities historically were not adequately consulted with
respect to developing policy relevant to rural hinterlands.

As it stands the provinces can tweak retail and distribution to suit their jurisdictions. A question that arises is
why provinces cannot deal with cultivation as it suits their jurisdictions, at least in the case of micro-licenses.
Each province has it its own differences with the value and meaning of the industry in the pre-legalization era.
For rural BC, this industry has been important to its well-being for the past 40 years.

The current policy framework allows only a small number of pre-existing operators to transition into the new
legalized cannabis economy. The rest will be left facing grave consequences of the loss of their livelihood.

Caught in the lllicit Market

While some cultivators do not intend to transition for various reasons, it is important to note that in face of this
policy most are left with no choice as they are under resourced with time, capital and/or knowledge to make the
transition. Stonewalled and pigeonholed, those that are most vulnerable; families, single parents, and older
generations, are the least likely to make the transition. Many communities throughout BC rely on this economy.
When forestry sectors crashed in the late 80's, cannabis cultivation became a safety net for rural areas
keeping these communities alive. There are few other options for employment in many rural regions where the

cannabis industry filled that need. .

With the most vulnerable populations remaining in the black market, and their eventual exposure to impending :
enforcement, it is imperative for the three levels of government to consider these socio economic impacts in |
such communities. In order to make the transition fair and equitable for those that have historically relied upon
cannabis cultivation and the accompanying culture, it is crucial to review cannabis policy and its limitations

affecting this largely misunderstood population.

A concermn voiced in the work shopping is the risk of ‘sticking one’s head out’ and potentially jeopardizing
livelinood. Although some of these individuals want to produce product for the legal market, none are currently
offered a reasonable option for moving forward.




No Transition Plan, No Reasonable Options

Unfortunately, a lack of consultation with rural industry participants led to unreasonable policy for small farmers
that currently means licensing is largely unattainable. To intentionally transition the industry, staged timelines
for adoption and amnesty of transition info CRA's database are needed. Testing outcomes, rather than
building standards, could have been the starting point for Micro license applicants. Additionally, timelines for
transition could have been laid out, which allowed applicants to meet certain requirements by certain dates.
This would provide ACMPR license holders the opportunity to produce product that could be sold on the legal
marketplace if it passed testing. A focus on product quality, and methods of production would have determined
its outcomes. Lessons can be applied from Sacramento California, where a pravious illicit industry is
intentionally being transitioned. Sacramento is prioritizing previous industry participants, or pre-existing license
holders, giving them top priority on the license application process, no application fees, and a secure allotment
of dedicated applications for this portion of the industry.

In comparison, one can look to the meat policy implemented across Canada in 2007. Similarly, small farmers
were not consulted. Overnight a community of small farmers became criminals for processing their farm raised
livestock themselves and selling it to their neighbors. While the reverse is true for cannabis regarding the law,
the policy is having a similar effect on the communities’ socic-economic wellbeing. In time a class licensing
system was put in place for livestock production, but the damage was already done. It may seem worthwhite
to consider this case in comparison, and implement a similar system. The Class E, C and D licensing system
of livestock production does not transpose exactly, but it could inform policy regarding cannabis law. Small
farms need permission to produce products and sell directly to customers and regulation standards need to
focus on quality control and traceability rather than excessive testing and incompatible distribution models.

Reconsider Canopy Sizes

The prescribed canopy sizes for micro licenses are not considered economically viable for many. Farmers
request the sanctioned indoor canopy size to be doubled at the current limit, and the outdoor quadrupled. The
reason for the larger increase for outdoor production is because outdoor cultivation produces only one crop per
annum and many of the licensing fees are still substantial. Ideas for an alternative ‘mini’ micro license have
also been suggested. This idea includes the limitation of production size while broadening the license to a
stacked or an all in ong license ie. Nursery, cultivation, production. This minf-micro option would allow more
flexibility for marketing, cannabis tourism and bud & breakfast integration. It could be a more accessible model
for many smaller cultivators. Again, referral could be made to the class licensing system of livestock
production which aims to meet the various needs of different scales of operations in rural areas.

Testing

From the perspective of the grassroots and the general micro applicant attempting to meet compliance
standards within the legal framework, the regulations around quality assurance and testing is prohibitive. The
methodologies for the larger scale producers do not meet the needs of the micro licenses. Though quality
control is recognized as an important issue, the policy approach to this topic is reminiscent again of what
happened to small farms around meat production in 2007. We suggest a focus on environmental controls,
goed practices and traceability (direct sales records) for the smaller cultivators and producers rather than
rigerous sterility and unrealistic standards currently being mandated. This is a major issue from a small
business perspective. Furthermore, small producers will likely have to rely on irradiation as microbial
parameters are unrealistic.




As was referred to in the solutions work shopping, a more specific form of testing needs to be adopted. In
various states in the US, GPCR (guantitative Polymerase Chain Reaction} is a more specific way to test and
even more accurate when looking for particular pathogens. This method is also significantly quicker.

The current regulations have very low folerance for any microbes. While cannabis has been historically
consumed outside of this degree of scrutinization, with proper protocols in place it should be highly feasible to
produce a product that is ‘safe’ to consume. It was voiced as a concern by many that these limitations
annihilate the possibility of truly organic standards. Organic production utilizes many beneficial microbes to
promote healthy plant growth and to keep harmful ones away.

Environmental Concerns and wasteful use of resources

The content of this report is largely focused on the barriers to transitioning, yet it must be stated that a large !
amount of feadback was offered around the potential environmental impacts resulting from the regulations at ;
all levels. From the excessive packaging mandated by the federal government, to the central distribution

model of the provincial system that relies on unnecessary transport of all product to one location. More

nuanced are the ecological costs implicit with zoning, ALR, and finance. The reasoning for this lies in a few

factors. The first being the need to finance with clean capital. As the preexisting industry has to find ways to

create clean paths financially, many are left having to abandon suitable, existing farm buildings since there is

often no traceability back to clean funds used for their construction. Zoning setbacks and ALR regulations also

create a similar situation in which cultivators have to drop existing structures and build a new or not at all. This

is a massive and wasteful barrier implicit of restrictive bureaucracy. From both an economic and ecological

perspective, a case could have been made for 'grandfathering’ in preexisting operations (ACMPR, MMAR

license holders)

The Global Context

The global marketplace for Cannabis is said to be valued between 130 to 200 billion dollars. As the second
country in the world to federally legalize cannabis, Canada is well positioned to be a leader in this industry.
While it is an ever-changing marketplace, it would seem as if there would be plenty of room to promote and
support the pre-existing industry to mobilize and be a part of this opportunity. Removing the Cannabis portfolio
from Health Canada’s control could open up opportunities for this industry on the global platform. Many
participants in the workshops expressed the wish for this file {0 be shifted to the Ministry of Agriculture, to
federally leverage existing programs to support activities of the industry.

For the Kootenays and many other rural areas in British Columbia the international and historical reputation for
cannabis eulture is renowned. The opportunity that exists for these rural regions should be supported. If this
unique culture is not backed for success, another economic opportunity will pass us by around cannabis
tourism. When one looks at wine tourism throughout BC over the last 15 years we can only begin to imagine
what this could mean for economic growth in rural regions of our province as people come to explore the
cannabis culture, farms, and history.

Moving Foerward?

The energy generated at the symposium was lively, productive and inspiring. The experience of coliectively
identifying and unifying around issues in the changing industry, built upen participants’ common ground. The
importance of the momentum that came from this day and its ripple effects cannot be overstated. Participants
left with a sense of hope, encouraged by the significant levels of shared experience and the support of the
surrounding community. While the intangible aspect of the connections made and the information shared
cannot be quantified, grassroots events like these give communities an opportunity to start mobilizing and




building capacity. This is something the corporate world has had a great head start on. The KUCA withessed a
tremendous value in this process and hopes to find the support to initiate events like these again, both locally
and provincially. The day resulted in showing several identifiable initiatives that are already unfolding as
positive steps for removing barriers within the community.

Community Fuiures has become instrumental in providing business education in their Cannabis 101 workshop.
They are also proactive in seeking partnerships and funding to support the application process and compiiance
requirements, as well as to reduce costs and confusion for applicants.

As many of the outlined barriers and challenges are policy based, advocacy is a major component. The
Kootenay United Cannabis Association will continue to update their policy papers and build membership.

With community input, we will advocate politically on their behalf. With our mandate and commitment to non-
biased organizational processes we aim to keep a united movement so that the Kootenay small farmers have a
fair chance to a prosperous future. We will alsc endeavor fo develop relationships throughout BC that
promote the success of small farmers, producers, retailers and communities that have relied on cannabis
cultivation.

It is our hope that ocur advocacy and regional focus will provide agency and groundwork for other regions, and
organizations throughout BC and Canada.

The symposium corrasponded with the BC Cannabis Secretariat’'s consultation process. We anticipate that this
process reflected the many voices and perspectives shared af the event. There is a general and petential
feeling of provincial support, howaver it is vital that the livelihood of small farmers and rural communities reliant
on cannabis cultivation, continues to be considered.

- Tracey Harvey's thesis asserts that the success of transitioning rural economies lies in cluster groups of
diversification and value added products. While corporate entities are speedy at mobilizing and getting to
“market, there is the hypothesis that long term sustainability of this industry for small cultivators lies in
cooperative groups and collectives. These business models and social structures will offer communities and
small farmers more security and democracy as this industry unfolds. A number of coops and collectives are
already in process in the Kootenays and we expect more forming soon in order to address the specific needs

of small producers.

Summary

The Kootenay Cannabis Symposium was a landmark event for the region. The significance of an event of this
nature has been reviewed throughout BC. For the first time the grassroots cannabis community was able {o
come out and work together to identify solutions to the many challenges they are faced with in transitioning to
the legal market. For many outsiders fo the industry it was eye opening to see a community of family people
and everyday citizens who rely on the livelihood this plant brings them.

As the many presentations and discussions reiterated during the day, the importance of and dependence on
cannabis in this region, and throughout BC, cannot be overstated. The plant and its cultivation is intrinsic to the
history, culture, customs and economy of the Kootenays. A number of anecdotal attempts have been made to
quantify its contribution to the ecaonomy, however, due to the histerical underground nature of the industry, the
exact economic relevance can only be guessed. We can categorically asser that this industry is tied deeply to
communities, local schools and businesses, to hardware, garden supply and groceries stores. The economic
multiplier effect resulting from consequences of the Cannabis Act will impact families and communities
throughout BC if this industry is not given a reasonable chance to succeed.




Furthermore, the symposium offered an opportunity for the local cannabis community to feel the support of
government, municipalities and regional organizations. The facilitated process that KUCA provided revealed
the potential of how policy might have been developed had cannabis experts of the grassroots been consulted. -
These policies reflect little to no Interest and understanding of the small scale producer, underpinning the
stigmatization and barriers still faced. We support the academic and anecdotal research presented by Tracey
Harvey that suggests that the creation of good policy must include dialogue with those that it impacts, namely
in this case, the small farmers and producers. To reiterate, developing policy that integrates the pre-existing
industry is imperative to the economic well-being of many rural communities across BC. As the legalization
process progresses, it is necessary and fair to ensure an atmosphere of leniency and safety in order to have
an appropriate consultation process.

British Columbia, and specifically the Kootenays, has the skills and workforce ready to adapt and transition to
the new cannabis economy. In many ways this is Canada’s ‘ground zero’ for Cannabis. The wealth of
knowledge, the community support, the clean environment and historic legacy make it prime to be a leader in
producing quality cannabis for both the recreation and medical markets as well as value added products.

Wa invite policy makers to make room at the table for rural communities in BC; including the farmers, medical
patients and workers. And by so doing, recognizing their historical contribution and expertise and allowing

them a reasonable and equitable opportunity to transition.

Thank You, the KUCA Directors hitp:fwww.kuca.cal

Kootenay United Cannabis Association would like to thank our sponsors

COMMUNITY

QRTINS 7

Sellirh g College

SPIRE

GLOBAL STRATEQY

The 8C Cannabis Cooperativie

Slocan Valley

west kootens C@MP  pEsiaN Fary




J(1)

Mayor Clarke's Report
to June 04, 2019

A VoS Strategic Planning Workshop (May 08)
> First of two meetings :
= Council was brought up to speed on what is currently in the works
Council brainstormed what they would like to see happen over the next few
years
- Will narrow scope and numerate priorities at a later meeting

A Meeting with MOTI (May 14)
Hugh Eberle — District Manager, Transportation
Katie Ward — District Operations Manager
> Got some questions answered — have a better understanding of the
relationship between MOTI and YRB
= MOTI provides oversight to ensure YRB is meeting the specifications of the
contract

A VoS Regular Meeting (May 14)
> See E(1)

A May Queen Pageant (May 16 & 17)
- Well attended
2 Candidates
Miss New Denver 2019 — Kira Popil Johnson
= Princess — Stephanie Smith

A May Days Parade & Award Ceremony (May 19)
- Wonderful weekend, well attended with good weather

A Invasive Species Presentation (May 21)
- See J(1a

A SVLGF (May 21)
Introduced the new Councils to each other
= Caught everyone up on what initiatives are currently undertaken
Explained the purpose and direction of the Slocan Valley Local Governments
Forum (aka Quartet)
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» Information sharing
= Resource sharing where possible
= Strategizing on regional initiatives

4 VoS Committee of the Whole (May 22)
- See E(2)

A Meeting with SIFCo (May 23)
= Introduced Stephan to Council
- Talked about the existing interface work
- Talked about upcoming FireSmart program

A FCM AGM (May 30 — June 02)
Well attended — over 2K voting delegates and 3.5K participants total
- Passed resolutions (7 in total)
« See J(1)b
> @Great talks from our political leaders
Met many newly elected officials and strengthened old relatlonshlps
- Attended a Climate Caucus meeting
= This is a growing grass roots movement
» Looking to share information share and make climate action a non-partisan
topic with the Provincial and Federal Governments
Leah Main was re-elected to the BC Caucus
= Councillor Main was also elected Chair of the BC Caucus
- Lots of information to unpack
» See J(1)c




Invasive Species cause significant economic
impacts in our communities including agriculture,
recreation, and other industries.

Public awareness and pressure is growing to reduce the impacts of invasive species.
i some araas, landowners are threatening legal action against neighbours who allow
invasive species to spread onto their land. Urban and rurai tocal governmants need
to be vigilant and pro-active to avoid long-term risks to infrastructure, lands and
biodiversity. Investing today in prevention and early control avoids significant ongoing
operational costs in the future and long term impacts on ecological health.

LOCAL GOVERNMENTS TAKING ACTION

Lacal Governments are at the front line for invasive spacies identification and
management. They are frequently the first to detect or be notified about invasive
species on public or private lands, Local governments have responded o the growing
threat through dedicating funding, establishing managemant plans and enacting
bylaws to mitigate impacts within their communities.

As an important first step, local governments can assess their readiness:

1. What dedicated funding and skilled staff does your organization
provide to tackle invasive species?

B R R R R N L LR R T A e N R L R L

2. How are you managing priority species on local government lands
(i.e. parks, roadsides, drainage channeis)?

R L R R L Ry L R L e e R L N R R

3. How do you record and monitor the progress of on-the-ground
operations?
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4, What partnerships has your government established to address
invasive species?
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8. How are you engaged with provincial and federal governmaents,
private landowners, regional invasive species organizations and cthers?

B R R e R R LR L LR

6, How do vour current bylaws, policies or plan(s) address invaslive specles?
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7. How do your plans coordinate across departments
(i.e. Parks, Environment, Planning, Engineering, Public Works)?

R R R R R el R R

8. What actions are belng taken to manage specific ‘pathways ' of spread
such as soil movement, pet and aquarium trade, mowing, disposal, etc.

R R R R LR AL R N R R s L s L AR TR T T

To maximize efforts and outcomes, close collaboration with provingial and federal
authorities is vital along with neighbouring jurisdictions, private land and right of
way owners. Non-government organizations such as the (nvasive Species Council
of BC, regional invasive species committees, local stewardship and yvouth groups
help contribute to success in reducing the spread.

Knotweed is a top-ten invasive
species in BC, Governments in BC
are spending millons annually to
reduce the risk to roads, bridges
and foundations.

EOCAL GOVERNMENTS ~ CALL TO ACTION AGAINST INVASIVE SPECIES // OCTOBER 2017 // PAGEIOF 2




The Invasive Species Toolkit
for Local Governmentsis a
vatuahle resource for locat

governments Initiating or INVASIVE SPECIES REGULATIONS

expanding thelr programs,

The Forest and Range Practices Act, the
Controlled Alien Species Regulation, the Weed
Control Act, and Community Charter enable local
governments to take action to control ‘invasive
species of high concern’ within their boundaries.

in addition, municipal bylaws, such as the Resoert Municipality of Whistier's Environmentat
Protection Bylaw, can provide further clarity and consistency for land managers. Many local
governments corngplle invasive species Inventories and actively controf invasive plants—both
on crown and private lands. Ajthough historically focused solely on invasive plants, some
local governments are broadening to “invasive species” due to increasing concerns about
emerging species such as European fire ants, feral pigs, invasive mussels and nutria.

This ‘Call to Action” was identified as a high priority by membaers of the Local Government
nvasive Species Network and was developed with the guidance and expertise of locatl
government advisors across BC.

— ; Get involved with the Lo_cal Government Invasive Species Network, established with
Parrot’s feather clogs waterways the support of the Invasive Species Council of BC. A local government listserve,
that are necessary for flood meetings and workshops are available to support municipal leaders and staff in reducing

ventl . . s R e
gfy eo? R?:hi:‘:n?:ainage Inthe the threat of invasive species to their communities.

Removat of vy fram the City
of Port Moody.

LOCAL GOVERNMENTS — CALL TO ACTION AGAINST INVASIVE SPECIES // OCTOBER 2017 // PAGE 2 OF 2
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What are Aquatic
Invasive Species? -

P Aquatic Invasive Species are non-native plants and.

“animals that have been introduced into an ecosystem

where they do not belong. They are able to reproduce
and spread quickly through waterways causing negative

impactson our environment, communitias and
infrastructure. Humans are the #T-way invasive
species are introduced and spread. Learn what
simple actions you can take to protect our waters!




¢ Help Prevent the
Spread of Invasive
Plants and Animals

« Arrive with clean gear

+ Stay on trails
« Burn local firewood
« Before leaving the

recreation site remove !

rmud and seeds from
vour shoes, gear,
vehicle and pets

= Contact CKISS.ca
R + Use ‘Report-Invasives BC' & ‘Report-a-Weed' Apps

+ Call RAPP line 1-877-952-RAPP to reportillegal |

dumping of garden waste on crown land
« Call provincial hotline 1-888-WEEDSBC

%) 1.844-352-1160

www.ckiss.ca
L,
info@ckiss.ca
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Resolutions referred to the Annual Conference by the Board of Directors/
Résolutions renvoyées au Congres annuel par le conseil d’administration

1. Expand the Airports Capital Assistance Program

WHEREAS, Airports play a fundamental role in opening up peripheral regions and in transporting -
goods and people, as well as providing emergency transportation;

WHEREAS, Airports contribute to the economic development of regions and dynamic use of land;

WHEREAS, Airport authorities are struggling to find the necessary funds to ensure that their
facilities remain safe and secure, to maintain their equipment and ensure runways in good
condition;

WHEREAS, The federal Airport Capital Assistance Program (ACAP) funds capital projects related
to safety, airport property protection and operating cost reduction;

WHEREAS, ACAP is available only for airports that offer year-round commercial passenger
service with a minimum of 1,000 passengers per year;

WHEREAS, Many airports do not meet the ACAP eligibility criteria as they do not offer regular
services; and

WHEREAS, ACAP funding has been capped for several years; how therefore be it
RESOLVED, That FCM urge the federal government to extend eligibility for ACAP to all small
airports, including those providing commercial passenger service to fewer than 1,000 passengers

per year, and to increase funding available for the program.

Union des municipalités du Québec

Background Research and Assessment:

fssue

This resolution calls on FCM to urge to federal government to extend eligibility for the Airports
Capital Assistance Program (ACAP) to all small airports, including those providing commercial
passenger service to fewer than 1,000 passengers per year. It also calls on the federal
government to increase the amount of annual funding available for the program.

Background

The federal Airports Capital Assistance Program (ACAP)

ACAP was created in conjunction with the National Airport Policy in 1994 to help eligible airports
pay for capital projects to maintain and improve airport safety. ACAP funds capital projects that
address one or more of the following priority areas: rehabilitation of airside facilities or purchase
of equipment for aircraft rescue and firefighting, purchase of heavy mobile equipment, and
improvements air terminal safety. Examples of ACAP-funded projects in 2018-2019 include:




rehabilitation of airside pavement, runway lighting and taxiways, and purchase of maintenance
equipment, such as de-icers, snow blowers, plow trucks, friction testers and wildlife fencing.

Any owner or operator of an eligible airport may apply for funding. Airports are eligible to apply
for ACAP funding if they offer year-round commercial passenger service with a minimum of 1,000
passengers per year, and serve less than 525,000 passengers per year. An exception to this rule
is if the airport qualifies as remote under the National Airports Policy, in which case the 1,000
passenger per year minimum does not apply. The airports must not be owned by the Government
of Canada and must meet all federal certification requirements.

ACAP has provided up to $38 million per year to successful applicant airports since the program
began in 1995. To date, Transport Canada reports having invested more than $785.9 million for
904 projects at 182 airports through ACAP.

Analysis

This reselution addresses an issue that is the direct concern of municipalities on a national level
and falls within the jurisdiction of the federal government. Small airports play a critical role as part
of regional transportation networks. They are also important for tourism and local economic
development. Small and remote airports that do not have scheduled passenger service do not
have the means to raise funds by taxing passengers, yet maintaining airport infrastructure is
critical to the viability of the communities these airports serve. Given the lack of access to capital
funding, such airports are also limited in their capacity to attract passenger service and thus
generate revenue.

In May 2017, the Union des municipalités du Québec (UMQ) completed a comprehensive survey
and Financial Analysis of Capital Requirements of Airports_in Quebec (in French). Findings of
the study, which looked at capital requirements for 136 airports in Quebec, concluded that an
average investment of $79.3 million per year over the next 5 years would be needed to support
maintenance and development of Quebec’s airports. The majority of required investments
implicate airports operated by municipal and regional authorities. Additionally, the study also
identifies several regional airports in Quebec — including those located within the communities of
Saint-Anne-des-Monts, Rocher-Percé, and Saint-Georges — that are ineligible for funding due to
existing ACAP passenger service requirements, making them responsible for financing their own
infrastructure maintenance and expansion.

It should be noted that air travel results in higher GHG emissions per passenger-kilometer than
car, bus or train travel. This is especially true for short-haul flights in smaller aircraft. FCM's Board
of Directors has adopted policy supporting federal efforts to work with municipalities to reduce
GHG emissions from the transportation sector (Policy Statement on Climate Change).

On January 31, 2019, the federal government announced that it was increasing the annual budget
for ACAP from $38 million to $48.6 million, partly addressing one of the calls this resolution is
making.

FCM has existing policy in support of this resolution through Section 2.2 of the Policy Statement
on_Transportation, which calls on the federal government to ensure that small airports and
National Airport System airports are eligible for funding through the Ailrport Capital Assistance
Program, or through other federal funding programs. This resolution expands on FCM's existing
policy by specifically calling for the 1,000 passenger per year eligibility threshold to be reassessed
and modified.
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2. Gender-based Violence
WHEREAS, Every six days in Canada a woman is killed by her intimate partner;
WHEREAS, One in five women experience some form of abuse in their intimate relationship;
WHEREAS, The majority of victims of spousal abuse are female, accounting for 83% of all victims;
WHEREAS, Every year in Canada 362,000 children witness or experience family violence;
WHEREAS, Gender based violence affects every community across Canada;

WHEREAS, The cost of violence against women costs the national justice system, social
assistance budgets and municipal budgets millions of dollars per year;

WHEREAS, In the 2018 federal budget, the Government of Canada announced a national
strategy for response to gender-based violence (GBV) that includes funding of $86 million over
five years, focusing on prevention, support for survivors and their families, and promotion of
responsive legal and justice systems;

WHEREAS, Municipalities are on the front lines in addressing gender-based violence in our
communities and therefore are in a position to offer insights on the needs and possible directions
for the federal funding; therefore be it

RESOLVED, That FCM endorse in principle the federal government’s national strategy to address
gender-hased violence; and be it further

RESOLVED, That FCM advocate with the federal governmerit for municipalities to be consulted
on how the strategy and the funding is implemented.

City of Edmonton, AB

Background Research and Assessment:;
fsstte

This resolution calls on FCM to endorse, in principle, the federal government’s national strategy
to address gender-based violence (GBV) and to advocate for municipal involvement in the
implementation of the strategy, including funding decisions.

Background

In 2016, the federal government undertook consultations with stakeholders — including provincial-
territorial governments, academia and civil society — to find ways to address the issue of gender-
based violence in Canada. Findings of the engagement process were used to inform development
of a strategy to prevent and address GBY, including suggested roles for the federal government.
National Strategy to Prevent and Address Gender-Based Violence

[n June 2017, the federal government announced its national strategy to address GBV. The
strategy — called ft's Time: Canada’s Strateqy to Prevent and Address Gender-Based Violence —
builds on current federal initiatives, coordinates existing programs and lays the foundation for
greater action on GBV.




The Strategy is based on three pillars:
» Prevention;
»  Support for survivors and their families; and
e Promotion of responsive {egal and justice systems.

The strategy aims to fill gaps in support for diverse populations, which could include: women and
girls, Indigenous Peoples, LGBTQ2 community members, gender non-binary individuals, those
living in northern, rural, and remocte cornmunities, people with disabilities, newcomers, children
and youth, and seniors.

Funding Allocation

The strategy proposes a whole-of-government approach to prevent and address GBVY, with
investments across multiple departments and agencies, including: Status of Women Canada; the
Public Health Agency of Canada; Public Safety Canada; the Department of National Defence; the
Royal Canadian Mounted Pclice; and Immigration, Refugees and Citizenship Canada. Funding
is allocated to support initiatives being undertaken by each of these agencies (further details can
be found here).

Budget 2017 included $100.9 million over five years, and $20.7 million per year ongoing, to
support the implementation of the GBY Strategy. This will include the creation of the GBV
Knowledge Centre within Status of Women Canada. The Knowledge Centre will better align
existing resources across government and support the development and sharing of research and
data to enable more coordinated, evidence-based action on GBV.

Budget 2018 proposed an additional $86 million over five years, starting in 2018-19, and $20.0
million per year ongoing, to expand the Strategy. New investments will focus con preventing teen
dating violence, cyberbullying, enhancing victim-care services, and investigative capacity of the
RCMP. Budget 2018 also proposed an expansion of the RCMP Sexual Assault Review and
establishment of a national framework to address GBV in post-secondary institutions.

Budget 2019 proposes additional measures to address GBV, including a whole-of-government
strategy to combat human trafficking, legislative amendments for increased access to family
justice, and enhancements tc the federal Women’s Program to advance gender equality, which
includes support for projects that will address GBV.

Analysis

This resolution addresses an issue that is a direct concern of municipalities at a national level and
falls within the jurisdiction of the federal government. GBV affects communities in all parts of
Canada and has financial impacts on social assistance, policing, local support services and
municipal budgets. GBV can also pose unique challenges for rural communities as availability
and cost of transportation can create additional barriers to timely access of victim support
services.

Municipalities are on the front lines of addressing gender-based viclence in communities.
Examples of municipally-led initiatives and policies that address GBYV include: Vancouver, BC -
Women's Equity Strategy (2018), Edmonton, AB — Gender Based Violence and Sexual Assault
Prevention Initiative (2015}, Toronto, ON -- Action on Intimate Pariner Violence against Women
(2015), and Winnipeg, MB — Winnipeg Safe City: Working for a City Free from Violence Against
Women and Girls (2013).




Given their experience and involvement in community-led initiatives aimed at combatting GBV
and the impacts on the frontlines, municipalities would be able to offer insights on local needs
and possible directions for the federal funding, including how te maximize these benefits
for communities.

FCM has noft previously adopted policy in support of a national strategy to address GBY,
however has a number of related policies:

»in §1.1 of the Policy Statement on Crime Prevention , FCM has standing policy that
endorses the United Nations Economic and Social Council's (ECOSO0C) Guidelines for
the Prevention of Crime, which encourage crime prevention through social development.
These guidelines are grounded in a number of international standards and norms,
including the U.N. Declaration on Elimination of Vioclence against Women, which
specifically targets GBV against women.

» Additionally , §2.1 of the Policy Statement on Crime Prevention , FCM policy states that
FCM will continue to work with key partners and stakeholder to provide constructive and
actionable recommendations to the federal government on how to reduce crime and
victimization and share knowledge and experience that can help municipalities
effectively prevent crime.

This resclution is consistent with these past policies and inferventions.
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Emergency Resolutions / Résolutions urgentes

3. Federal Climate Change Adaptation Funding and Support for Regional Disaster
Mitigation and Fleod Planning

WHEREAS, the City of Gatineau is particularly impacted by the effects of extreme weather
events, including major floods in 2017 and 2019, a tornado in 2018 and more frequent heavy
rainfalls;

WHEREAS, a recent report released by Environment and Climate Change Canada found that
Canada has and will continue to warm, on average, twice as much as the rest of the world, and
the effects of this warming are already being experienced by Canadian municipalities; and

WHEREAS, a recent study commissioned by the Union of Quebec Municipalities found that the
cost of adapting to climate change for Quebec municipalities could hit $4 billion over the next five
years,; and

WHEREAS, the Insurance Bureau of Canada reported that in 2018 insured damage for severe
weather events across Canada reached $1.9 billion, and while this figure represents the fourth
highest amount of losses on record, the losses in 2018 were caused not by any single large event
but by the culmination of many smaller disaster events; and

WHEREAS, investing in disaster mitigation and climate change adaptation infrastructure has
been demonstrated to not only increase the resiliency of communities but also reduce the
economic losses associated with extreme weather events; and

WHEREAS, the majority of federal funding programs for disaster mitigation and climate change
adaptation {e.g. National Disaster Mitigation Program, Municipalities for Climate Innovation
Program, Disaster Mitigation and Adaptation Fund) are fully subscribed and/or nearing
completion; and

WHEREAS, increasing community resilience through disaster mitigation and climate change
adaptation cannot be sucgessfully achieved without collaboration between multiple stakeholders,
including federal, provincial and municipal governments, private landowners, residents, First
Nations, and businesses, and there is a need to ensure that future funding for disaster mitigation
and adaptation encourages a regional, multi-stakeholder approach; therefore be it

RESOLVED, that FCM call on the Government of Canada to provide predictable, flexible, long-
term infrastructure funding to help municipalities reduce disaster risk and adapt to climate change,
with funding levels based on the latest assessments of the impact of climate change and the cost
of adapting municipal infrastructure; and be it further

RESOLVED, that FCM call on the Government of Canada to ensure that future investments in
disaster mitigation and climate change adaptation support a regional approach where costs and
benefits are shared between all orders of government; and be it further

RESOLVED, That FCM call on the Government of Canada to provide support for regional climate
risk assessments and disaster risk reduction plans, including watershed-level flood mitigation
plans.

City of Gatineau, Quebec




Background Research and Assessment:
Issue

This resolution calls on FCM to advocate for greater support and investment in long-term
infrastructure funding through a regional approach to disaster mitigation and climate change
adaptation.

Background

In September 2018, the Standing Committee on Environmental issues and Sustainable
Development approved “federal investment in disaster mitigation and climate change adaptation
infrastructure” as a 2019 faderal election priority.

FCM's Policy Statement on Climate Change states: The federal government should support local
governments to build and adapt infrastructure to make it more resilient to climate change through
sustained, predictable funding models, ideally through an allocation-based funding model.

Analysis

A recent report from Environment and Climate Change Canada found that, on average, Canada
is warming at twice the rate as the rest of the world and climate impacts are already being felf,
particularly in our northern regions. Flooding continues to be one of the most frequent and costliest
natural disasters in Canada. A 2016 report by the Parliamentary Budget Officer estimated that
from 2016-2021, flooding alone would account for 70% of federal Disaster Financial Assistance
Arrangement (DFAA) payments, costing the federal government an estimated $673 million per
year. The same report pointed to a lack of coordination between levels of government and
recommended regional planning at the watershed level to mitigate flood risk over time.

The cost for municipalities to adapt to the impacts of climate change will be high. A recent report
from Groupe AGECO estimates that the cost to adapt to climate change impacts in Quebec could
be as high as $4 billion over the next 5 years. However, it has been demonstrated that investing
in mitigation/prevention projects has a high return on investment: every dollar spent on mitigation
saves $6 in damages. Natural infrastructure, in particular, can provide significant and cost-
effective disaster mitigation benefits: natural wetlands in southern Ontario, for example, have
been shown to reduce flood damage costs by up to 30%-40%. Natural infrastructure, however,
does not abide by jurisdictional boundaries and requires a regional appreach to planning and
management.

According to early results of FCM's Municipalities for Climate Innovation Program (MCIP), many
municipalities are in the very early stages of planning for climate change adaptation. Therefore,
while it is critical to invest in disaster mitigation and adaptation infrastructure, it will also be critical
to invest in the development of regional planning approaches and frameworks to ensure
investments are integrated and effective. The addition of a regional planning approach to disaster
mitigation and climate change adaptation aligns well with overall FCM policy and supports more
effective investments by the federal government.

Recommendation

2019 APRIL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: Category A — Concurrence

2019 ANNUAL CONFERENCE DEcIsion: Carried




4. Municipal Engagement in the Canadian Broadband Strategy

WHEREAS FCM has been calling on the federal government to create an ambitious, long-term
national broadband strategy with clear targets; long-term, predictable funding; and an emphasis
on affordability;

WHEREAS in October 2018, federal, provincial and territorial ministers agreed to developing a
long-term strategy to improve access to high-speed Internet services for all Canadians;

WHEREAS Budget 2019 made significant commitments to funding broadband infrastructure for
rural, remote and northern communities;

WHEREAS revaluating targets for fixed and mobile broadband on a regular basis will ensure that
rural communities do not fall behind in the development of new technologies, or suffer from a loss
of access or decrease in quality of services;

WHEREAS municipalities have on-the-ground knowledge with respect to the challenges their
communities face in accessing broadband and as such can provide important input into data
collection and can leverage their expertise to support the achievernent of the objectives of the
Canadian Broadband Strategy; therefore be it

RESOLVED that FCM urge the federal government to engage municipalities in the development
of the Canadian broadband strategy and in the design and eligibility criteria of the new federal
broadband fund; and be it further

RESOVLED that FCM encourage the federal government to include considerations for evolving
speed targets in the Canadian broadband strategy; and be it further

RESOLVED that FCM encourage the Canadian Infrastructure Bank to engage with municipalities
so that projects that have demonstrated engagement with local governments and that consider
local needs are prioritized,

Association of Yukon Communities, YK

Background Research and Assessment:

Issue

FCM has long advocated for increased federal involvement in developing the telecommunications
infrastructure that is critical to the social, cultural and economic vibrancy of Canada’s rural,
horthern and remote communities. FCM welcomed the unprecedented investment committed in
Budget 2019 to developing Canada's broadband infrastructure; however, municipalities need to
be engaged in the development of a National Broadband Sirategy. Moreover, FCM's work must
continue in order to ensure the federal investments prioritize affordability and monitor evolving
speed and service needs. Budget 2019 also anticipated $1 billion of investment in broadband
through the Canadian Infrastructure Bank. It will be important to monitor the roll-out of these funds
through the Bank to ensure local needs are being met.

Background

At the September 2018 Board of Directors meeting, the Board adopted policy on a National
Broadband Strategy and adopted *FCM's Rural Broadband Strategy” as a 2018-2019 priority for




the Rural Forum. FCM’s policy on broadband will be priority of the 2019 platform development
process. Given the recognized importance of this issue politically, staff committed to working to
ensure that all parties are aware of FCM's policy recommendations on the broadband file in
advance of the next federal election in an effort to secure pledges for significant new investments
in rural broadband.

In January 2019, the federal government created a new ministerial portfolio: rural economic
development. The new Minister, Bernadette Jordan, has a mandate to focus on improving rural
broadband internet.

Analysis

Since 2009, the federal government has made commitments to closing the broadband gap in
Canada; however, greater federal action and national oversight has been needed to ensure
Canadians in rural, remote and northern communities across the country have adequate access
to broadband services. The federal government’s commitment in 2018 to developing a long-term
strategy with provincial and territorial ministers is a positive step to improving access to high-
speed Internet services. It will be important for municipalities to be engaged in the development
and implementation of this strategy to ensure that local needs are considered. Furthermare, in
order to ensure that Canada’s broadband targets reflect present realities, the federal government
should collect and analyse data on broadband access, observed speeds and other key metrics,
and on user needs and technical requirements on a regular basis.

In anticipation of the upcoming federal election, there is a critical opportunity to communicate to
each of the federal parties and influence their election platforms. In Septembar 2018, the Board
approved Rural Broadband as one of FCM’'s election priorities. Adopting more detailed
recommendations to the federal government on the development of rural broadhand and a
national strategy will help draw attention to this FCM priority. Furthermore, with the appointment
of the new federal Minister for Rural Economic Development, it would be timely to have detailed
policy specific to municipal engagement in the Canadian broadband strategy in order fo further
our discussions with the minister's office.

Recommendation

2019 APRIL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: Category A — Concurrence

2019 ANNUAL CONFERENCE DEcIsion: Carried




5. Prioritizing Housing Affordability

WHEREAS the National Housing Strategy prioritizes housing solutions for low- and moderate-
income households, per FCM’s recommendations;

WHEREAS renters and homeowners at a range of income levels and in cities and communities
of all sizes are increasingly unlikely to be able to access or maintain a home that is affordable to
them and meets their needs;

WHEREAS, on average, owning a home is more expensive now than at any time in the last 30
years;

WHEREAS average rent increases are outstripping inflation in many housing markets;

WHEREAS housing affordability pressures are exacerbated by record-high household debt-to-
income levels in a rising interest-rate environment;

WHEREAS the stability of national and local housing markets has a direct linkage to national and
local economic outcomes;

WHEREAS housing affordability is correlated to positive health and socioeconomic outcomes:

WHEREAS the federal government has influence over the affordability of housing, both rented
and owned, through the regulation of mortgages and mortgage insurance, taxation levers and its
spending power;

WHEREAS the federal government's 2019 budget underscored that housing affordability is a
federal concern, and that it has an important role to play in addressing it through the
announcement of the First-Time Home Buyer Incentive and enhancements to both the Rental
Construction Financing Initiative and Home Buyer's Plan;

RESOLVED that the federal government assess and publicly report on the impact of budget 2019
measures designed to improve housing affordability for renters and owners; and

RESOLVED that the federal government work with municipalities through FCM to determine the
most effective federal role in improving housing affordability for renters and owners at the local
level.

City of Victoria, B.C.

Background Research and Assessment:

Issue

The resolution acknowledges the role that FCM played in ensuring the National Housing Strategy
focuses on housing solutions for those in greatest need, but identifies that other households with
comparatively higher incomes are also facing housing affordability pressures. These pressures
negatively impact those households, the municipalities in which they live and national economic
outcomes.

The resolution points out that the federal government has acknowledged its role in supporting
housing affordability, most recently in Budget 2019.




The resolution proposes a public evaluation of Budget 2019 housing affordability measures, but
also joint work between the federal government and municipalities through FCM to identify the
most effective federal role in improving housing affordability for both renters and owners.

Background

Prospective buyers and some existing owners are under pressure as home affordability is at its
worst point since 1990. Renters are facing tightening vacancy rates and, accordingly, average
rent increases that are outstripping inflation in many housing markets. Underpinning all of this is
growing household debt-to-income levels with the average household carrying almost $1.80 in
debt for every $1 of income.

Housing affordability challenges exist in all parts of Canada and in communities of all sizes. In
2016, 11.6 percent of households living in communities with populations between 10,000 and
100.000 people were living in core housing need, compared with 14 percent in centres of at least
100,000 people. A household is considered to be in core housing need if they cannot locally
access a home that has enough bedrooms for the family size and composition; that does not need
major repairs and does not require them to pay more than 30 percent of pre-tax income in housing
costs. :

Housing need data from 2016 for communities under 10,000 people is not yet available, but other
data sets demonstrate similar pressures in rural Canada. Statistics Canada’s 2014 General Social
Survey found that adults in rural Ontario were more likely to report experiencing homelessness
or hidden homelessness than urban residents.

Housing affordability pressures in the North are elevated, with 15.2 percent, 15.5 percent and
36.5 percent of households living in core housing need in communities in Yukon, NWT and
Nunavut, respectively. Some groups are disproportionately facing housing affordability pressures
across the country, including Indigenous Canadians, seniors and lone-parent families.

Budget 2019 included several measures designed to support housing affordability, including an
expansion of the existing Rental Construction Financing Initiative; the expansion of the existing
Home Buyers Plan; the development of a First-Time Home Buyer Incentive; and the launch of a
Housing Supply Challenge.

Analysis

When households spend more on housing, they have less to spend in the local businesses that
drive local economies and, in turn, national economic outcomes. When households cannot find
housing they can afford where job opportunities exist, they may not take those opportunities,
which deprives the local economy of the labour it needs. When a household can only afford
housing a considerable distance from their place(s) of work, increased congestion, family
pressures and negative health impacts can arise.

In its housing-focused policy and advocacy work to-date, FCM has prioritized non-market
affordable/social housing solutions needed for low- and moderate-income households. The
growth in housing affordability pressures facing households with comparatively higher incomes,
who would normally secure housing in the market, is leading to negative impacts for households
and municipalities, which compels FCM to expand the scope of its housing work in the manner
outlined by the resolution. This resolution builds on an existing 2018 resolution, which began this
process, but is more specific in calling for federal-municipal dialogue and co-operation, starting
with an assessment of the effectiveness of measures contained in the 2019 federal budget.




Recommendation

2019 APRIL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: Category A — Concurrence

2019 ANNUAL CONFERENCE DEcision: Carried




6. Rural Economic Development
WHEREAS rural communities make significant contributions to Canada’s economic growth;

WHEREAS rural municipalities have been impacted by the demographic changes that have
accompanied Canada’s increasingly urbanized and knowledge-based economy:;

WHEREAS rural Canada is extremely diverse in terms of population size, density, demographic
composition and degree of remoteness, the opportunities for economic development in rural
communities must be considered in federal policies and programs for rural economic development
in a manner that respects and capitalizes on that diversity; therefore be it

RESOLVED that FCM call on the federal government o strategically leverage existing programs,
policies and institutions to further rural economic development, such as regional economic
development offices; and be it further

RESOLVED that the Minister of Rural Economic Development engage municipalities through
FCM to develop economic growth approaches that recognize the diverse needs and solutions in
rural communities across Canada.

Parkland County, AB

Background Research and Assessment:

Issue

Rural areas play a crifical role in building Canada’s economy, but some of these communities
face real barriers to fostering economic activity and maintaining quality of life. FCM has long called
for programs and strategies to reverse this trend that avoid a one-size-fits-all approach by
recognizing the unigque challenges and opportunities that exist in rural communities. Canada’s
regional development agencies support Canadian businesses by providing them with resources,
tools and knowledge sharing and may be an effactive way to further rural economic development.

Background

At the September 2018 Board of Directors meeting, the board adopted standing policy on rural
economic development and at the September 2017 Board of Directors meeting, the Rural Forum
prioritized additional research and conference programming that will explore the rural economic
issues that fall under federal-municipal jurisdiction. The Board approved “Rural Ecenomic and
Social Development” as an advocacy and research priority.

On May 22, 2018, FCM released Rural challenges, national opportunity: Shaping the fulure of
rural Canada—a report highlighting the successes and potential of Canada’s smaller and more
remote communities. The report offers recommendations for the federal government in order to
address rural challenges and underlines that doing so is an opportunity to raise the quality of life
of Canadians nationwide.

The Minister of Rural Economic Development's mandate to lead the development of a Canadian
Rural Economic Development Strategy is an important opportunity to ensure that rural priorities
and economic growth are prioritized. The new rural economic development strategy is an
opportunity to evaluate and expand on the tools available to rural communities from across federal
departments and ensure they are optimized and aligned to deliver the best results for rural
municipalities and Canadians.




Analysis

Regional development agency (RDA) programs help foster environments that enable businesses
to grow and support the development of strong, dynamic regicnal economies throughout the
country.

Rural Canada is extremely diverse in terms of population size, density and degree of remoteness
or proximity to urban centres. For example, a rural township of 11,000 in the Greater Toronto Area
and a large municipal district of 13,000 in northern Alberta experience very different lifestyles,
opportunities and challenges. Therefore, narrow definitions or a “one-size-fits-all” approach to
rural policy will not work. Solutions to rural problems must reflect rural Canada’s diversity.

The maost significant challenge facing many rural communities is limited financial and human
resources. FCM research found that roughly 80 per cent of Canadian municipalities have five staff
members or less. This lack of capacity is one reason why programs thaf succeed in urban
communities do not necessarily work in rural communities. An important solution is to share tools
and resources through partnerships with federal and provincialterritorial governments,
Indigenous neighbours and other municipalities of all sizes. Programs must build on community
priarities and offer flexibility.

FCM has existing policy advocating that the federal government adopt a rural lens to federal
programs and paolicies; however, FCM does not have specific policy on encouraging the federal
government to work with municipalities to address rural economic development. In September
2018, the Board approved Rural Economic Development as one of FCM's election priorities.
Advocating for the federal government to leverage existing programs and policies to further rural
economic development will help draw attention to this FCM priority and provide more detailed
policy recommendations to the federal government.

With the appointment of the new federal Minister for Rural Economic Development, it would be
timely to have policy specific to economic development in order to further our discussions with
the minister's office. Furthermore, in anticipation of the upcoming federal election, there is a
critical opportunity to communicate to each of the federal parties the importance of rural economic
development and influence their election platforms.

Recommendation

2019 APRIL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: Category A — Concurrence

2019 ANNUAL CONFERENCE DEcisioN: Carried




7. Zero Emission Buses and Municipal Fleet Vehicles

WHEREAS, fransportation accounts for nearly 25% of Canada’s greenhouse gas (GHG)
emissions; and ‘

WHEREAS, responding to the resolution Efectric Vehicle incentives adopted by FCM's Board of
Directors in 2018, the 2019 federal budget included important incentives to help Canadian
households and businesses to purchase electric vehicles; and

WHEREAS, there are a range of proven low- and zero-emission propulsion technologies including
battery-electric, hydrogen fuel cell and renewable natural gas from municipal waste facilities that
can be integrated into municipal light-duty (passenger vehicles and trucks) and heavy-duty (waste
collection and snow clearing) vehicles; and

WHEREAS, there were 17,000 municipal transit vehicles in operation in Canada in 2017, 14,000
of which were diesel, and switching from a diesel bus to a zero-emission bus reduces GHG
emissions by 1,500 tonnes per year; and

WHEREAS, zero-emission bus technology is proven and already in use in municipal {ransit fleets,
two of the leading zero-emission bus manufacturers are Canadian companies, and municipal
transit agencies have set targets to incorporate zero-emission buses into their fleets; and

WHEREAS, it is challenging for municipalities to cover the higher upfront capital cost of zero-
emission vehicles, including the charging or refueling infrastructure, without impacting service
levels; now therefore be it

RESOLVED, That the Government of Canada support municipalities to purchase or lease zero-
emission fleet vehicles, and associated charging or refueling infrastructure, including through
grants, financing and bulk procurement; and be it further

RESOLVED, That the Government of Canada support municipalities to purchase or lease zero-
emission fransit buses, and associated charging or refueling infrastructure, including through
grants, financing and bulk procurement.

Executive Committee

Background Research and Assessment:

Issue

This resolution calls on the federal government to provide direct support to municipalities and
municipal transit authorities to accelerate the adoption of zero-emission municipal fleet and transit
vehicles.

Background

FCM's Policy Statement on Climate Change calls for a strong federal-municipal partnership to
reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions from the transportation, buildings and waste sectors in
line with the Paris Climate Agreement and Canada’s emission reduction target of 30% below 2005
levels by 2030.




In September 2018, FCM'’s Board of Directors passed the resolution Electric Vehicle Incentives
which calls on the federal government to provide per-vehicle incentives to the general public fo
accelerate the adoption of electric vehicles.

Analysis

A recent report from Environment and Climate Change Canada found that, on average, Canada
is warming at twice the rate as the rest of the world and climate impacts are already being felt,
particularly in our northern regions. Reducing greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions to hold the global
increase in temperature to 1.5° - 2° above pre-industrial levels will require collective action. FCM
has called on the federal government to support municipal efforts to reduce GHG emissions at
the local level consistent with the need to meet the COP21 Paris Climate Agreement.
Municipalities across the country, including more than 350 members of FCM's Partners for
Climate Protection Program, have established ambitious local GHG reduction targets and are
implementing plans to reduce corporate and community-wide GHG emissions.

GHG emissions from municipal fleet vehicles can comprise between 10-50% of a municipality's
total corporate emissions. Proven low- and zero-emission vehicles are available on the market
and are being adopted by municipalities in both urban and rural contexts. Electric, hydrogen fuel
cell and renewable natural gas platforms are available for both light-duty (passenger vehicles and
trucks) and heavy-duty (waste collection and snow clearing) vehicles. Municipalities such as the
Ville de Saint-Hyacinthe and the City of Surrey are producing renewabie natural gas (biogas) from
municipal and agricultural organic waste facilities and using this fuel source to power municipal
fleet vehicles.

Municipal transit fleets present another opportunity to reduce GHG emissions and long-term
operating costs. C40 Cities, the leading climate network for large cities, has identified the
. transition to zero-emission mass transit as the top action that cities can take to reduce GHG
emissions in the near term. Municipal transit agencies across the country have adopted green
procurement targets. For instance the Société de transport de Montréal (STM} has set a goal of
100% renewable energy by 2014, and TransLink, Metro Vancouver's transit agency, has a target
of 100% renewable energy by 2050.

Municipalities and municipal transit agencies consistently cite high upfront capital costs of
vehicles and charging or refueling infrastructure as a primary barrier to adopting zero emission
vehicles. In April 2019, FCM surveyed 25 municipalities of different sizes in different regions of
the country that are using or have expressed an interest in adopting zero-emission fleet vehicles.
High upfront capital costs and a lack of charging or refueling infrasiructure were identified as
primary barriers to adoption. Over time, zero emission vehicles can reduce municipal operating
costs as a result of lower fuel and maintenance costs. In certain cases, this payback creates
opportunities for financing options based on the operational cost savings.

Zero emission buses and municipal fleet vehicles also contribute to improved air quality. FCM's
Policy Statement on_Air_Quality outlines a role for the federal government to work with
municipalities to improve urban air quality.

Recommendation

2019 MAY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: Category A — Concurrerice

20719 ANNUAL coNFERENCE pecision: Carried
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COOKING AND INDOOR AIR
QUALITY

Background

Cocking activities can affect indoor air quality, which may have an
impact on your health, This factsheet presents strategies to help
reduce poliutant levels resulting from cooking and raduce the risk
of exposure. '

What rooking activities produce pollutants?

Whether vou cook on a gas or an electric stove, cooking creates
particuiata matter {PM). PM are small particles of cooked food,
fat or oil that may become airborne when you fry, deep-fry, roast,
broil, sauté, toast, bake, or burn food.

A Health Canada study has shown that PM levels can be 65 times

higher than background levels following cooking activities”.

Steaming, boiling or using a microwave produces fewer particles.

In addition, using a gas stove can also generate combustion by-

products such as nitrogen dioxide (NO,), and carban monoxide
{CO}.

Cooklng'aétivities can also produce excessive water vapour,
increasing the amount of moisture in the air, which can lead to
mould growth.

What are the potential health effects of exposure to
cocking-related poliutants?

People with existing heart and lung conditions (including asthma},
young childran, and older adults tend to be more susceptible to
the adverse health effects of PM, NO, and CO.

Numerous health effects have been shown to result from
exposure to these poliutants that can be generated during
cooking, including:

« (rritation of the eyes, nose, throat;

+  Respiratory symptoms such as wheezing, coughing, and
shortness of breath;

*»  Headache, fatigue, and flu-like symptoms; and

*  Worsening of lung and heart condttions like asthma,
chronic obstructive pulmenary disease {(COPD), and heart
disease.

Your haalth and

Volre santé et volre

safety... our priority.  sécurité... notre priorité.

How tan you reduce your risi?

The use of a range hood exhaust fan when cooking can reduce the
ievels of cocking-related poliutants such as PM, NO,, CO, and
watar vapour,

Use your range hood exhaust fan, preferably on the high setting,
when cooking. Running a range hood exhaust on high (300 cuble
feat/minute) during cooking can reduce exposure to cooking-
related pollutants by more than 80% when compared to slower
speedsm.

ft is recommended that any range hood exhaust fan fully extend
over the stove burners to ensure maximum effectiveness’,

H you do not have a range hood exhaust fan, you may want to
consider installing one or opening a window close by to help
remove the poilutants from the home.

Additional steps can be taken to reduce exposure to poliutants
from cooking, such as:

+  using back burners Instead of front burners;
opening windows while cooking; and
running the fan in your furnace or ventilation system, if
available.

Firally, Health Canada recommends that you install and maintain
at [east one CO alarm in your hame.

Whare do i go for more Information?

To learn more about air quality and health, please visit our
wehbsite at https://www,capada.ca/en/health-canada/services/air-
quality.html or confact us at HC.air. SC@canada.ca.

Reforonces

' Sun, Wallace, Dobbin, You, Kuika, Shin, St-lean, Ashin and Singer.
2018 Effect of venting range hood flow rate on size-resolved
ultrafine particle concentrations from gas stove cooking. AS&Y.
published anline. DOI;10.1080/02786826.2018.1524572,

*Dobbin, Sun, Wallace, Kulka, You, Shin, Aubin, St-lean and Singer.
2018 The benefit of kitchen exhaust fan use after cooking - an
experimental assessment. Building and Environment, 135; 286-
296
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FLOOD CLEANUP: KEEP IN MIND INDOOR AIR QUALITY

After a flood, it's important to restore your home to good order as soon as possible to protect your health
and prevent further damage to your house and belongings. In an emergency situation, the indoor air
quality in your home may appear to be the least of your problems. However, failure to remove standing
water or water damaged materials can present serious long-term health risks. Standing water and wet
materials will allow viruses, bacteria, and mould to grow. These organisms can cause disease, trigger

. allergle reactions, and continue to damage materials long after the flood,

IMMEDIATE ACTION 1S IMPORTANT. YOUR HOUSE AND FURNISHINGS ARE LESS LIKELY TO GROW
MQOULD iF THEY ARE DRIED WITHIN 48 HOURS.

Before you begin

Put your own safaty first, Avoid electrical shock, Wear rubber boots at 2l times while standing in water.
Keep extension cords out of the water. Shut the power off to the flooded area at the breaker box. Ask
your local electrical utllity for heilp if needed,

Datermine if the flood involves relatively clean water or sewage-contaminated water, You must take
special precautions if your house is flooded with sewage, There is a very real and significant danger of
infection from breathing the air in an area contaminated by sewage and from handling water and materials
contaminated by sewage. Children, pregnant women and people with respiratory prablems should never
hanclie water and materials contaminated by sewage. Household items that have been contaminated by
sewage, or that have been wet for a long time, may have to be bagged, tagged and discarded according to
local regulations. Contact your tocal public health department if you suspect sewage contamination, A
more thorough disinfection procedure will be needed, as well as greater precaution to avoeid exposure of
family members and pets.

Whether you do the cleanup yourself or hire a contractor, this document will help you get organized.

Set up a step-by-step action plan to:

&

prepare for the cleanup

=+ remove water, mud and other debris

dispose of contaminated household goods

clean and dry out your house and salvageable possessions.

&

®

Prepare for the cleanup. Assembla equipment and supplies;

# disposable gloves, N95 mask, goggles

» pails, mops, sponges and plastic garbage bags

¢ unscented detergent (Note: Bleach is not necessary to cleanup mould)
+« where passible open windows and doors to provide fresh air




FLOOD CLEANUP: KEEP IN MIND INDOOR AIR QUALITY

# you may need to rent extension cords, submersible pumps, wet/dry shop vacuums and
dehumidifiers '

1. Remove water, mud and other debris

» Remove standing water with pumps or pails, then with a wet/dry shop vacuum,

s Remove all soaked and dirty materials, debris, residual mud and soll,

»  Clean any dirt on walls and furnishings with an unscented soap solution, removing the remaining
water with a wet/dry shop vacuum. Then clean all floors as quickly as possible.

2. Dispose of contaminated household items that cannot be dried

# Flooring that has been soaked by flocod water should be removed and discarded.

¢ Remove finished walls completely if: the water level was several feet high; it took many days or
longer befare the water was drained; or the area was very humid for an extended period.

» Dispose of all insulation materials, drywall, carpets, particleboard furniture, mattresses, box springs,
stuffed toys, pillows, cushions and furniture coverings that have been exposed to flood water and
cannot be dried (see Addressing Moisture and Mould in Your Home for more details),

= ldentify the materials that may be kept and which should be given priority for cleanup.

3, Clean and dry out the house and salvageable posseésions

s Surfaces that are dry and/or have not been directly affected by the flood water should be
vacuumad with a HEPA vacuum cleaner. ‘ , _ _ .

s  After cleaning the surfaces with an unscented soap solution, ventilate or dehumidify the house until
it is dry. ‘

¢ Rapid drying is important to prevent mould growth. If outside weather permits (low humidity and
moderate temperature), open doors and windows and spead up the drying process with fans.

« I the outside weather 13 not suitable or the drying is slow, use a dehumidifier.

Avoid Carbon Monoxide Polsoning
Carbon monoxide is a colourless, odourless gas that can be lethal at high levels. 1t can build up quickly if,

for example, pumps or heaters powered by gasoline, kerosene, or propane, are used in a poorly ventilated
room. Do not use combustion equipment designed for oltdoor use indoars.

MAKE SURE THERE IS A WORKING CARBON MONOXIDE DETECTOR, ESPECIALLY WHEN DRYING OUT
YOUR HOUSE.

For more information, contact us by phone at (613) 957-1876, by email at air@he-sc.ge.ca or go to
hitp://www.getpreoared.ge.cafent/hzd fflds-eng.aspx.
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ADDRESSING MOISTURE AND MOULD IN YOUR HOME

Health Canada considers indoor mould growth to be a significant health hazard. The word mould is a
common term referring to fungi that can grow on building materials in homes or other buildings. Damp
conditlons and mould growth in homes increases the risk of respiratory allergy symptoms and exacerbate
asthma in mold-sensitive individuals, it is important to know how to identify, address and prevent mois-
ture and mould in your home.

People living in homes with mould and damp conditions are more likely to have:

» eye, nose and throat irritation

# coughing and phlegm build-up

« wheezing and shortness of breath
¢ worsening of asthma symptoms

The level of concern depends on the extent of mould, how long it has been present and the sensitivity
and overall health of the residents. Some people are more susceptible than others. For examgple, infants,
children, the elderly and those with health problems such as breathing difficulties are more at risk from
mould and dampness. :

Any respiratory health concerns should be discussed with a physician if you suspect that these could be
caused by poor indoor air quality. Your physician is best suited to determine if your symptoms may be
related to environmental factors or some other underlying cause. '

HEALTH CANADA RECOMMENDS CONTROLLING DAMPNESS INDOORS AND CLEANING UP ANY MOULD |
REGARDLESS OF THE TYPE OF MOULD PRESENT',

tdentifying mould

Mould growth can be hidden. Mould can grow behind walls or above ceiling tiles, so it is important to
check for the presence of mould anywhere that is damp and especially where water damage has oc-
curred. Start with a visual inspection of your home. Look for signs of mould or excessive moisture, such as
stains or discolouration on floors, walls, window panes, ceiling tiles, fabrics and carpets. Logk for obvious
signs of [eaks, condensation, flooding, or a musty odour. Immediate action is important. Mould will
begin to grow within 48 hours. If there is visible mould, it needs to be removed,

1. Health Canada, Residential Indoor Afr Quality Guidelines: Mould {Ottawa: Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Canada, 2007}, p. 2.
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ADDRESSING MOISTURE AND MOULD IN YOUR HOME
Professional assistance

You may wish to seek advice on how you can address moisture and mould problems in your home. A
qualified professional with experience dealing with moisture issues and mould could examine the condi-
tion of your home and document your concerns. They would identify the moisture problems, find their
sources and suggest solutions in a written report. Recommendations should be provided to you in a prior-
ftized action plan consisting of various options on how to address the specific moistiure and mould prob-
lems in your home,

HEALTH CANADA DOES NOT RECOMMEND TESTING THE AIR FOR MOULD.

Health Canada, in accord with other public health organizations, does not recommend testing the air for
mould. An air test does not provide information on health and does not address the cause of mouid
damage in the house. You also do not need to know the type of mould present in order to remove it.
Mould is a natural part of the environment and there are always mould spores in air. Simply finding
mould spores in an air test does not necessarily mean there is a problem. The best way to reduce your
health risk from mould is to identify and remove the moisture source(s) and clean up the mould.

Muoisture: investigating and solving problems
Mould will grow indoors if moisture is present, Moisture problems in homes may result from:

+ daily activities such as showering or bathing, washing clothes or cooking, if exhaust fans are not
working properly or are not used; _

» infiltration of water from the outside when there are cracks orleaks in the foundation, floor, walls
or roof;

e plumbing leaks;

s moisture condensation on cold surfaces;

» flooding due to weather conditions (snow melt, storm surges, prolonged ar heavy rainfall);

#» inadequate ventilation.

Moisture indoors accumulates when it cannot be vented outside and becomes a problem when building
materials become damp or wet.

MOISTURE PROBLEMS ARE PREVENTABLE.
Unless the cause of the moisture problem has been identified and solved, mould will reappear. Once the

moisture problem and its causes have been identified, they must be fixed. To prevent future probiems,
measures should be put in place to control sources of moisture in your home, for example:

= Ensure rain, irrigation water and snowmelt drain away from the house by sloping the grade away
from the building.




ADDRESSING MOISTURE AND MOULD IN YOUR HOME

+ Keep eavestroughs and downspouts clean of debris and ensure that the outflow runs away from
the house and not into neighbouring foundations.

« Repalr plumbing leaks promptly.

+ Use exhaust fans, ventilation and air conditioning systems to vent moisture outdoors.

« Use moisture tolerant materials in areas likely to get wet (kitchen, bathrooms, laundry areas).

RUN A DEHUMIDIFIER IN DAMP AREAS SUCH AS BASEMENTS OR IF YOU OBSERVE THAT MOISTURE IS
CONDENSING ON COLD SURFACES SUCH AS WINDOW PANES.

Extent of mould growth

It is important to determine the extent of the mould problem in your home to help you decide on the
clean-up procedure. An area of mould is considered small if it covers one square metre or less. There
should be no more than three patches of mould, with the total area staying within one square metre.
Many small patches of mould in one area or throughout your home are a sign of moisture problems that
need to be investigated and corrected right away.

IF IGNORED, SMALL MOULD AREAS MAY BECOME LARGER OVER TIME, SO T IS IMPORTANT TO CLEAN
THEM UP BEFORE THE PROBLEM GETS BIGGER. A SMALL AMOUNT OF MOULD MAY BE CLEANED UP
USING PROPER PROCEDURES AND PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT.

The area of mould is considered medium if there are more than three patches of mould (each patch
smaller than a square metre), but the total area is less than three square metres. in this case, assessment
by a qualified professional is recommended but in most cases a medium amount of mould may be
cleaned up using proper procedures and protective equipment (see section on Cleaning up Small and
Medium Mould Problems on page 4),

An area of mould is considered large if a single patch of mould is larger than three square metres. Health
Canada does not recommend that an unqualified person clean up large areas of mould. You may need a
professional assessment to determine why the mould is there in the first place and how to clean it up.
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TABLE 1: EXTENT OF MOQULD - DEC%S#ON CHART FOR CLEANUP PURPOSES
TotalSurface Area:Affected by Mould - 53

SMALL MEDIUM LARGE

Three or fewer patches and the total if there more than 3 patches or if the patches are

2
area Is less than 1 m? greater than 1 m? but less than 3 m? a single patch s larger than 3 m

Medium mould area: Expert assessmant recom-
mended, but may be cleaned up using proper pre-
cautions

Small mould area: cleanup uslng prop-
er precautions

targe mould area: Expert assessment
and cleanup required

Cleaning Up Small and Medium Mould Problems

DO NOT USE BLEACH TO CLEAN UP MOULD.

You can clean up small areas of mould if you follow the proper procedures and use the right protective
equipment. Unless the mould growth is on smooth surfaces such as bathroom tiles, surface cleaning will
not eliminate the problem.

In most cases you can clean up medium areas of mould if you follow the proper procedures and use the
right protective equipment. Materials damaged by mould must be physically removed and dispased of
under safe conditions. However, it is important to seek professional assistance if there is a large mould
problem or if mould comes back after cleaning.

Susceptible individuals such as pregnant women, infants, children, the elderly, {or pets) and occupants
with asthma, allergies or other health problems should not be in or near the area where the mould is
being cleaned up.

MINIMUM PROTECTIVE GEAR NEEDED:
s SAFETY GLASSES OR GOGGLES;
o A DISPOSABLE N95 MASK; AND
» HOUSEHOLD DISPOSABLE GLOVES.

You can purchase an N95 mask from a hardware store. Make sure that the label says “N95”. Other masks
are designed to provide limited protection against dust and are not suitable for protecting against mould
exposure. Make sure that the mask is properly fitted and you can breathe through the mask.
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In a flood situation: put your own safety first. Avoid electrical shock, Wear rubber hoots at ail times
while standing in water. Keep extension cords out of the water, Shut the power off to the flooded area
at the breaker box. Ask your local electrical utility for help if needed {see Flood Cleanup: Keep in Mind
Indoor Air Quality).

Washable surfaces
Examples of washable surfaces are window sills, wood, hard surfaces and tiles.

= Scrub surface using a cloth with an unscented soap solution,
= Sponge with a clean wet cloth and dry quickly.

Walls

+ Clean the surface of the wall with a damp cloth using baking seda or a small amount of unscented
soap solution. Do not allow the drywall to get too wet, Cleaning with too much water adds mois-
ture to the paper and can damage the surface.

s |f the mould is underneath the paint, the drywall will need to be removed and replaced with new
drywall,

+ Painting over a mouldy surface does not kill mould and does not stop it from growing back. Paint-
ing only temporarily hides the problem.

Concrete surfaces

= - Scrub surface using a brush with an unScented soap mixed with warm water; then

= Sponge with a clean, damp cloth and dry quickly.

« Remove any carpets or cardboard boxes that have been placed directly on the concrete floor as
these may have become damp and allowed mould to grow.

MOULD THAT COMES BACK AETER CLEANING IS USUALLY AN INDICATION THAT THE SOURCE OF MOIS-
TURE HAS NOT BEEN REMOVED. SEEK PROFESSIONAL ASSISTANCE.

Before mould cdean-up work begins

Any mould growing indoors has to be removed. The underlying water or moisture problem that led to
mould growth has to be fixed in order to prevent mould from coming back. For example, the building
envelope (i.e., roof, walls, windows, doors, foundation) has to be repaired if moisture or water is entering
your home from the outside, Before mould clean-up work begins you may want to follow these steps:

Step 1--Discard mouldy or damaged materials
¢ Use protective equipment
»  Where possible open windows and doors to provide fresh air.
¢ Place and seal all mouldy items in a plastic bag.
¢ Take the sealed bags outside using the closest exit and dispose.
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Soft furnishings, mattresses, bedding and plush toys

Check non-washable furnishings for mould. Moisture and mould can get into soft or upholstered
furnishings. Cleaning the surface may not be effective, Because many hours are spent in bed, it is
important to make sure that mattresses, pillows, blankets and stuffed toys are mould-free.
Stuffed toys should be considered as bedding because they are often used as pillows or held close
to children’s faces. Mould can grow in mattrasses and bedding that have been damp or wet. It is
not possible to clean a mouldy mattress.

# Throw away carpets, sofas, cushions, mattresses, pillows, stuffed toys or bedding that
have gotten wet, have been exposed to damp conditions or that have been stored in a wet
environment. Furnishings that have been in very moist conditions for several weeks can
become mouldy.

¢ Do not hang onto mouldy items after the house has been cleaned.

s Clean dry mattresses in good condition with a HEPA vacuum or externally exhausted vacu-
um.

Paper and cardboard
Mouldy paper is one of the most difficult materials to clean.

« Throw away any books, paper, cardboard, puzzles, or other paper products that show
signs of mould.

Step 2—Vacuum

Do not use a regular vacuum for homes with a mould problem. Instead, use a vacuum cleaner with a
HEPA filter or a central vacuum system that is exhausted outside.

Vacuum all surfaces in the house slowly and carefully.
Vacuum all non-washable furnishings (sofas, chairs, mattresses, etc.) slowly and carefully.

Vacuuming the surface of furnishings may not be effective if they have been wet or exposed to
dampness over a long period.

Clean and/or replace the vacuum filkers often according to manufacturer’s recommendations.

Step 3—Clear wet areas

%

L]

Pull carpets and furnishings away from walls that are wet,
Carpets and underpads that are mouldy should be cut out and discarded.

Step 4—Dry

»

®

Dry areas that are wet,
Use a portable dehumidifier, if you observe condensation on cold surfaces. Ensure that the drain
pan of the dehumidifier is emptied regularly or that the dehumidifier drains directly into a drain.
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Step 5—Isolate, if necessary
« |f the mould is limited to one area, isolate the area if possible to limit your exposure.
+ Cover the affected surfaces with plastic sheeting secured at the edges with duct tape.
s Note that this is only a temporary measure to minimize your exposure while waiting for the
cleanup work to begin.

Step 6—Seek professional assistance
+ Consider seeking professional assistance to identify the right corrective action to be taken inside
your home.
+ To remove large amounts of mould, the services of a mould cleanup contractor are required.

Prevention Checklist

The key to mould prevention is to remove excessive moisture build-up and control relative humidity
through proper home maintenance and by following these steps:

Bathroom

s Remove the moisture by using an exhaust fan when you shower or take a bath.

« If you don't have an exhaust fan, get one installed in each bathroom.

» Check exhaust fans to make sure there is adequate air movement and that they are vented to the
outside and not into the attic.

» Keep the fan running for at least 30 minutes after your shower.

+  Keep surfaces clean and dry. Squeegee and dry the walls around the bathtub and shower after
showering or bathing. ‘

» Remove any mould by scrubbing with unscented dishwashing detergent and water.

e Clean often to prevent small patches of mould from getting larger.

+ Repair or replace open, cracked or damaged tile, grout and caulking around showers and tubs.

= Repair plumbing leaks promptly.

Kitchen
s Remove the moisture hy using a kitchen range hood every time you cook.
« Check the range hood to make sure there is adequate air movement and it vents to the outside.
« Cover pots with a lid while cooking.

Laundry Room

Clothes dryer

s Check that your clothes dryer vents to the outside.

s  Seal the joints in the dryer duct with foil tape.

e (Clean thelint tray every time you use the dryer.

= Qccasionally inspect the outside vent hood and rermove any built-up lint.

+ Make sure nothing is placed in front of the vent outside and that the vent is kept clear.
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Washing machine

+ Leave the washing machine door open when not in use so that any water left behind can dry. This
will prevent mould and bacteria from growing inside the washing machine.

¢« Make sure that water from the washing machine flows directly into the laundry sink or drain
without dripping or splashing outside of the laundry sink. Use pipe extensions to reduce any
splashing.

= Check hoses and connections for leaks.

¢ Hanging wet l[aundry indoors increases indoor humidity.

Condensation on windows, window frames and sills
s Promptly repair any leaks.
¢ Lower the indoor moisture levels.
+ Use exhaust bathroom fans and a kitchen range hood.
# Keep window coverings open to mave the warm air over the windows (heavy curtains or blinds
can trap the cold and moisture and cause condensation on your windows}.
» Keep baseboards or heating vents clear of furniture to make sure the heat flows.
= Dry your window frames and sills daily to keep water from dripping and causing mould to grow.
# |Leave interior doors open for good air and heat flow.
#+ Unpiug and remave humidifiers.

Basement
+ Run a dehumidifier in your basement to help reduce dampness year round {if necessary). Make
sure the windows are closed when the dehumidifier is running.
e Check plumbing pipes for condensation, dry pipes and insulate them with foam insulation.
« Keep areas and storage spaces free and clear of clutter, especially if near an outside wall.
if you use the basemaent for storing items, use plastic bins with lids instead of cardboard.
Never place cardboard boxes directly on the basement floor.
Store firewood in the garage or shed, not inside the house.
Remove any carpets from the basement floor.

&

® & @

General considerations
» Have family and friends take off their shoes at the door before entering your home,
e Keep beds, bedding and furniture away from outside walls for good airflow.
« Keep closets and storage spaces free and clear of clutter, especially if near an outside wall.
# Install a central vacuum vented outdoors or use a HEPA vacuum. Vacuum often. Clean hard floors
with a damp mop.

NOTE: If you rent a house or an apartment unit speak to your landlord about any moisture or mould
problems. Information on landiord/tenant issues, rights and responsibilities is avaitable from your provin-
cial/territorial government. If the moisture problem is a result of a fault in a common element in the
building, it may be the responsibility of the owner/landlord to address the problem.

if you own a condominium unit or workspace, be sure to consult with the Condominium Board before
taking corrective action.




AIR POLLUTION:

NITROGEN DIOXIDE?

Nitragen dioxide {NO,} is ore of 2 group of gases
known as nltregen oxides (MO,). NO, has direct
heaith effects but can sfso react with other pollutants
in air to form ground-level ozone {O)) and particulate
matver (PM, the major companants of smog, NG, alsa
conributes to the formation of adid rain.

WHG 1§ MOST AT RISK FROM AIR POLLUTIONT

Even heslthy young adults can experience health issuns on days

when the air is heavily polluted but sorme groups #re more af risk:

-+ Children

= Seniorg

¢ Paople with asthma, chironic
chsiructive pulmonary disease
{COPD), cardiovascular diseasas,
diahates

¥ Active people of all sgas who Children / Santors
exatcise or work hard outdoors

HOW CAN 1 PROTECT MYSELF
FROM AIR POLLUTION?
Knovr the best times to be active cutdaors;

= Chack the Air Quality Health Indax in your community
fairhalth, cal

-+ if you hava a heart or lung condition, talk 1o your heakh cere
professionsl sbout edditionsl ways to protect your health
when air gollution tevels are highur

Ways to reduce axposure:

«# funid o raduca stenunus sutdoor activities whan air poflution
favels are higher

-+ Avpie or rechece angrcising naar heavy waflic, especially during
sush haur

. . Health Santé
Canada  Canada

WHAT ACTION 15 THE GOVERNMENT OF CARADA TAKING ON NITROGEN DIOXIDE?

¢ Fedleral taguiations huve recuced ouldoar NOa arnissions in Canada from key sources,

~ Canada has agpead o internationnt teatiss to reducs NO, amissions fram autdanr surnss,

“+ Zanada has astabfishact the Canadian Ambient Alr Quality Standards {CAAQS). Thesa are health- and
envlronmant-based numerical values of cutdaos sir concorrations of paliutants intendsd to drive cantinucus
air quality imgrovement in Canade. The CAAQS, a key clameat of the At Quality Manageroget Syslarm, were
develeped through a process stegred by the Canpdian Countil of Ministers of the Enviconmant (CCRME).
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AIR POLLUTION:
OZONE?

Cround-lavel ozane [0y is a gas that forms cdace hiel . WHERE DO .
to the Eanth’s surface through reactions betwesn Vehicla emiselans OZONE Construction
certain pallutants (known as precursors] in the
presence of sunlight. PRECURSORS

COME FROM?

Ozone iz a component of smog. o .
Zone precursors,

such as nitrogen oxides
{NOx) and valatile arganic
compounds (VOCs), can come
[rorn man-made or natural sources,
including {bul not fimited to):

WHO [5 MOST AT RISK TO AIR POLLUTION?

Evar: healthy young aclults con expaerience health issuas on days when
the air is heavily polluted but some groups sre more st risk:

-+ Childran
> Seriors

Ircstry Agriculture

- People with asthma, thronic
obstructive pulmenary disasse
[COPD), cardiovascular diseasas,
diabtas

Ghildran £ Seniors

-+ Active people of all ages who

exercise or work hard outdears Woad burning Forest fires

WHAT ACTION IS THE GOVERNMENT OF CANADA TAKING ON OZONE?

~# Fedara] regulations iave reducad amlasions of ezone pracursors from key sources in Canacks,
v+ Canada has agread to internalianat frdaties to reduce banshoundary fiow of caone and its precursors,

« Canaclz bas established the Conadian Ambiznt Alr Quality Standards (CAAQS). These ara health- end
emvironment-based numerical values of autdaor air concentrations of poflutants inended to drive contingous
air quallty improvernent in Canada. The CAAQS, a key element of the Alr Quality Managerent System, werg
developed through a process steerad by the Canadian Cauncil of Ministers of the Emvironment {CCME).
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AIR POLLUTION:

PM is a misture of small liquid and solid particles nthe
air we breatha. They vary in size and chemical make-up.

PM is a component of smog.

WHQ [S MOST AT RISK TO AIR POLLUTION?
Even hzaithy young adults can experience
health issues on days when the afr is heavily
pailuted but sorne groups are more at risk:

=¥ Chilchar

=¥ Seniors

cardiovascular diseases, dishetes

-+ Active people of all ages who exercise or work hard outdoars

HOWlCAN E PROTECT MYSELF
FROM AIR FOLLUTION?

Know wher the air 15 unhealthy:
¥ Check the Alr Quatity Health Index in your community
1o find nut the bast time to ba active cutsida
ihitprsweatherge co/airgoality/pagasfindex_z.htomil}
=+ If you have & heart of lung condition, talk 1 your health core
profassional ahont adiitional ways to protect your hieakth
when air pollution levels ars high

Ways to reduce expasure:

“+ Avoid or raduce strenuous utdsor activities when air
poliution Tevets arg high

“# Avoid or reduce exarcising near aress of heavy traffic,
especially during rush houye
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PARTICULATE MATTER (PM)?

B

Childran / Seniors
- People with asthma, chrenle obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD),

WHERE DOES
PM COME FROM?

PM can come directly from man-made and
natural sourges or ba formed by reactions
among other pollutants. Main sources of
PM are (but not limites] to):

Road dust

Vehicle ernissions

fndustry Construction

Wood burning Agriculture

Forest fires

WHAT ACTION 15 THE GOVERNMENT OF CANADA TAKING ON PM?

~+ Federsl regulations have reduced PM emissicns in Canada lrem key sources.
-} Canada has agreed to international traaties to reduco PM emissions,

+¥ {;anada has established the Ganadisn Ambient Afr Guality Standards {CAAQS). Thase are kealth. and
environment-based numerical values of outdoar air concentrations of pollutants intended to drive continuous air
quality improvement in Canada. The CAAQS, 2 key ¢lement of the Air Quality Management System, were devefoped
through a process steered by the Canadian Council of Ministers of the Environment {CCME)L
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AIR POLLUTION:
DIESEL AND
GASOLINE EXHAUST?

esal and gosaling exhaust are mixturss of gases, panicles, and many
diffarent chamleals. Somi of the pollutants in dfissal and gaseling exhaust that
impract humen haalth inclode nitregen dioxide (NG, particulate matter (PM),
ant polycyclic sromatic hydrocarbons (PAH), The make-up of dissel and
gasoling exhavsat Is varisble depending on fuel typa, enging type, and
oparating conditions.

HOW ARE CANADIANS EXPOQSED TO
DIESEL AND GASOLINE EXHAUST?

People’s exposuras Yo diesal and gasoline axhaust depand on:

Trtranort Hucks Buses

~+ Mode of transportation
t2.0. vehicta, bus, train, boa
anc] time spant in transit

= Balng close to tranaport hubs,
includling bus or trafn statians
ancl maring parts

“+ Time spent uutside closa
0 roadwiys

- Being close to or ualng thesel- ar
gasoline-powered aquipment

= Weather conditions
{a.g. temperature, wind,
precipitation)

=+ Haavy tralfic (.9, major roads
anel highways) closs to thefr home,
sehaal, and workplues

Cnrs, ucks
and motoreycles

HOW CAN | PROTECT MYSELF FROM DIESEL AND
GASOLINE EXHAUST AND AR POLEUTION EN GENERAL?
Ways to radurs expostre:
~+ Auaid or redute grerciting nagr heavy waflie, especislly duding ush ko
=+ Choose law-traffic roures for walking, running, or cycling
b Exarcise i pasks and green spaces, sway from masjor soadways

DID YOU KNOW?
You can help to reduce diesel and
gasoline exhaust emissions b
-* Choosing alternate ways lo
travel, such as walking or .
cyeling, pubic transit,
ot carpooling
=+ Avgiding unnecessary fdling
ol your vebicle Ko the best timos te be active sutdoors:
.= Maintaining your vehicles =¥ Check the Afr Qualkty. Haalth Indax in your ecstrmiunly faichealth.cay
_and equipment for pptimal

engine parformance ariditional ways to pratect your health when air pollution Javels ars bighor
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WHERE DC DIESEL AND
GASOLINE EXHAUST COME FROM?

Aoy vahicle o sgfne (hat uses diesel luat produces dissel sxhzust and any vehicle or enging that uses gasofing
fual prediyces gasoline exhaust. For vehicles and engines, sxhaust is refansad fram the tailpipa ar muffler,

Soma axamples of vehicles and engmnes thal use diesel fuel pr gasoling fual inchede:

Boats

=k Avaid or raduce strenucus outdoor activitian whan.air pollution fsvals are higher

=4 If you have 3 heart or lung condition, talk to your [ealth cara professionat sbout

MAINLY DIESEL FUEL

Traing Genatitors

MAINLY GASOLINE FUEL

Chalnsaurs

Lawnmowers Sngwnwahilzs

WHAT ACTION I5 THE GOVERNMENT
OF CANADA TAKING ON AIR
POLLUTION FROM DIESEL AND
GASOLINE EXHAUST?

Ineryusingly mere stringent fedaral regulations have
been introduced ovor time to reduce aie poilutant
amissions from diesel- and gasoling-powared
vehicles andl acuipinent, Reductions In emissions,
fram these reguletions, are mainty dus fo!
=+ Improved] engine performanca
~ Adoption of the [atest eraission control
tachnelogies
=+ Cleanar fuels; inchudiog fuels with low
sudphur gentent
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Agricuilure

Mining

Af-tercain Jat skis
wehicles (ATVs)
DID YOU KNOW?
#2% 8%
Gosaling Eiasel

T

Of all cars, rucks, and buses used
in Caniada, approximately 92% use
gasoline and only 8% use diessf,

However, diasal vahiclas
contribute ta graaler than

5 00/0 :zﬁx:tk:;?:ions

from afl an-road vehicles in Canada,

For more information on air ppiluti_br':, pleése'va’sit'\_n.wvw;c'anada_.ca( en/health-canada/ s_ervi_ces_[air-‘qua_li_ty._htm[_o_r contact us at: HC.a_inSC;Gj_:':anta_da__‘._ca_ ;
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Heating spplances TYPICAL IKDOOR SOURCES CARBON MONOXIDE (CO)

OF CARBON MONDXIDE ARE . .
(furnace, gas water heater} 7 tbut ot fimited o) ) " Healthycanadians.ge.ca/indoarAir
i ‘ ; . air@hc-sc.ge.ca

————t (335 powered generators

What is carbon monexide?
Gas producad
during combustion

Gas powerad eguipment
{fawnmower, snowblower]

l

Fireptaces/
Wood Stoves

Cocking and household appliances Cigaretres
{gas stove, barbecte, gas-dryer)

HEALTH EFFECTS OF CO TO PREVENT CO POISONING

0§ @& @ oy

Dizziness/ Headsches ChestPain g Loss of Coma Death
Confusion ° © Consciousness

0 INSTALL a certified €O alarm near bedrooms |

@ CLEAN chimney .

@ DON'T use barbacue or power generator indoars

@ BON'T idle car or run gas-powered equipment in garage

H LOW CONCENTRATION HIGH CONCENTRATION
@ MAINTAIN stoves/ireplaces and have your furnace checked annizally

Bel B, Canadi




THENGS THAT CAN
GET MOULDY

Carpits s

—=  MOULD

WHE 18 MOST AT RISK? :
& ;

- WHAT IS MOULD? _— Vsils % 1 1
3 Iaubd is the commen werd for any lungus : : : -
S that grows on lood of damp materals. ,ﬂ\ i n “
: A Babies 7 Children / Senlors
: Paople with Asthma

PilowsiMattrasses Furniture

Bathrooms

Arything that can get wat

WHAT TO DO IF THERE IS MOULD [N YOUR HOME

HEALTH EFFECTS OF MOULD

LW @ & O

Mase/Throat/Eye Iritation Tears  Snegzing  Diffiqulty  Expcerbation
Breathing  of Asthma

@ FIX causes lleak or infiltration), dry wet surfaces within 48 hours

CLEANM all sl prarches f= 1 m? of mouid on non-paroys surfaces®
vith sosp and wates [f the sres is farger, you should hire a professionsl.

WEAR mizsk, goggles, and gloves when cleaning mould

@ NG need to uss bleach

: @ THROW aveay what you can't clean
If you have any of these symptoms and suspect they are from mould,

sae a doctor or health professional. @ REPLACE building materials if they cannot be clesned

= bron-porous tunFBees Estlue giass, mutals, Ieather snd plastics anc vinyl
Penny surseas inchedo drpand, cordisnard, papar ard unlrastond wood,

Use ba_ktﬁmqm,
. . . ) : nd kitchen fan
For. more information on addressing meisture and mauld, please visit healthycanadians.ge.ca/indoorair or contact us at: air@hc:sc.ge.ca

L Y R S A Y o)

Pyl KM

) o8
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MAINTAIN AND IMPROVE
INDOOR AIR QUALITY

Healthycanadians.ge.ca/lndoorir
airBthe-sc.ge.ca

Bake suta your thimney i not biocked aivd that it is
clenaned once a ywar so pollutants ans wnted antside.

Raducs the wss of candles and Intanse
as they increase partcle fevals indoars.

Crpening windows may incredse vantilation in your herne,
Chedh the oulden? air quatity corditions in yaur ragion
helare epaning windows.

lnstall attvast one CSA-approved earbon

manmtde (CQ) datactor close to betdraoms. ¢ Fake sora your roof and foundation do nat lesk

Use the axfaust fan in the bathraom whan showersing o
Make sure you vantilate whan using pamts of warmishes. bathing 1o fedues humidity and prevent mould growah,

Some amit valatife grganic VO],

D nyot sranks indours. Clgarrties emit mary chamicals
inchuding carkon moncxide {CO), parniclos and formalduhyde.

Make sura corpets are vacuumasd regulaty of temove thec s
thoy traps dhust, dusi mites, panicles, dnd allergens, Clean hurd
flars regularky using & damp map to efficisntly remove particles.

Promptly fix any leak 1o avoid mould,
Claan wp any visihle mould.

Use your range hood to reduce your expasurs to pollutants
from your gas stove such 28 ntragen diodde (MO)) and
Hurnichty rm conking activities.

Atk surn the interface batween your
atrached garage and your home s
proparly sealed. Pollutants can migets
fram your garacse 1o your iving space.

IF nat prapetly instaflod, maintaired or used, fireplaces ray
wmit carbon monoxida (C0], parifeles, and other pollutants.

If piossilia, de not stom gaseling dned
sther chamicats in yous garage Maver'ue a charcoal grll, hibachf, barbecue or camplng
giove inside your home of garage, o Ihey protuee paricles

Avsitd idling yeur can, snowblowar, and! eathan monoxide {CO0F

lawnmavrer, power gengrator or any
gas-powsted enuipment in the gavage,
even if the door is oper.

Of-gasslag feom humiture and Noors can emit volatie
organic 35 (WECs) such as forenaltehyde. Increasing
verilation may el decrease indoar cahcentrations

Mnke ause your dryar axhaust is vented to the sutside

Make sure your furtace is well-mainialnec (o prevent carkon
H : and make swe iLis not blocked.

monekide (CO} acrumufation. Change the filter regulaily

Make sureyou use tloaning products propedy Some of them
miay amit high levels of volatila arganic compounds (VOCs).

Aftar a flood, maka sure eventhing is ceanad and
sdried quickly and prepedy ta prevent mould growh,

1343
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Councillor Main Council Report _ Jurie 2019

15 May
Rurai Affairs Committee - attended as Observer

Joint Resocurce Recovery Committes

@ Received Annual Ogerations and Monitoring Reports for Creston, Ootischenia and Nakusp
Landfilis
¢ Organics Infrastructure Program Update for Creston, Castlegar, Nelson, RDKB {participation)
e Household Hazardous Waste Roundups — reviewed and modified schedule — ours remains as is
¢ Recycle BC Service Transition will hagin in September and be rolled out over approximately 2-4
months

16 May
RDCK Board

¢ Recreation Commission #6 Spring Grants were approved:
- Slocan Solitens Society for Centennial Ball Park $1,000
- Lucerne School Parent Advisory Committee $300
- Valhalla Fine Arts Society $800
- Slocan Solutions Society for Convergence Writer's Weekend $300
- Slocan Lake Arena Society $570
- New Denvar May Days Committee 51,000
- Dark Water Dragons Society $800
- Silverten Community Club $300

¢ Voted to send letter of support to Community Futures Central Kootenay for the Cannabis
Business Transition pilot '

e Adopted a new Procedure Bylaw

* Approved Contribution Agreement for $3 M Nationa! Disaster Mitigation Program funding to
complete a Regional Flood Mapping project {Phase 2) 2019-2020; sole source contract with BGC
Engineering

* Adopted a traditionai land acknowledgement to be read at the opening of all RDCK Board
meetings: “We acknowledge and respect the indigenous peoples within whose traditional lands
we are meeting today”

e Approved all submitted CIP/AAP Grant recommendations

21 May
Quartet

Various Dates

Regicnal Transit Committee: Consultations with Staff
Community Sustainable Living Steering Committee: Consultations with Staff, Agenda Prep

pg. 1




Councillor Main Council Report June 2019
13 & 27 May

3 June

Climate Leadership Caucus

FCM

Bi-weekly video conference meetings, discussion around Climate Emergency/Cris’s; developing
strategies to facilitate a multi-lateral national discussion, and tools local governments can adopt
toward that discussion and toward mitigation measures

Called an open meeting at FCM, which garnered attendance far beyond our wildest dreams. 100-
130 delegates - great enthusiasm, willingness to share; establishing a circulation list,
communications tools, and an advocacy strategy toward senior governments around issues of
response, funding, policy, and support for loca! programming

BC Delegates Networking Meeting ~ introduction to FCM:; final call for Board Candidates
Trade Show
Cpening Ceremony, Political Keynote and introduction to Election Strategy 2019
Roundtable discussion with Rural Economic Development Minister Bernadette Jordan
CEO - International Delegates Reception
Women in Local Government Scholarship Fundraising Breakfast
Board of Director Elections — BC Caucus:

- Leah Main, Chair

- Rhona Martin, Columbia Shuswap Regional District, Vice-Chair

- Garth Frizzell, Prince George, 2" Vice-President

- Gord Kiassen, Fort 5t. John

- lames Wang, Burnaby

- ValVandenbroek, City of Langley

- Edwin Grieve, Comox Valley Regional District

- Arjun Singh, Kemloops/Maja Tait, Sooke

=]
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Administrative Report: Hillary Elliott, CAO

Village of Silverton Council

Regular Meeting — June 11, 2019

This administrative report covers the period May 10, 2019 to June 6, 2019 as to the activities,
functions, and meetings I have attended in my capacity as Chief Administrative Officer for the
Village of Silverton.

Financial Operations:
Staff worked with the CFO to complete the draft 2018 Annual Report and Financial Statements.

Staff have been busy working to complete the 2018 Annual Report and Financial Statements and
ensuring we are complying with provincial legislation regarding these important documents. As
well as, working on completing other final reports and documents such as, the CARIP, and
exercise equipment final report for funding.

Functions:

I have been busy continuing to work diligently to address the needs of the community and its
residents while also attending to regular corporate business on a daily and monthly basis.

This is a busy time of year with meetings continuing with our partnership projects, RDI Climate
Adaption Project, 3-Village and SIFCo FireSmart project, Sub-regional Economic Development
Partnership, and the Asset Management Phase 2 project.

The Village received funding from the federal funding program Student Summer Jobs. Verbal
update regarding the Summer Student positions will be provided at the meeting,.

I will be posting this week the Notice for community engagement regarding the OCP and Zoning
Bylaw updates scheduled for later this year. The first OCP public engagement meeting with
special gnest Richard Toperczer will be on June 24" at Spm in the Memorial Hall. Please
look at the community bulletin boards and in the Valley Voice for more details in the
following weeks; or feel free to call the Village Office for more information at 250-358-
2472.

Projects:

RD/{ Climate Adaptation Project

Councillor Tanya Gordon and Councillor Leah Main attended a meeting with myself and the
RDI Climate Adaptation team highlighting indicators provided by RDI that are most relevant for
the Village of Silverton. Also providing other people/resources for further information and data
collection for the project.
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Asset Management Phase 2.

I have been in contact with our contractor setting up our new computers with the GIS software
and talking about long-term sustainability of our Asset Management and how to keep it useful

and up-to-date efficiently, effectively, and financially viable. Next meeting will be in-person in
Nakusp on June 13%.

FireSmart Application 2019 for Silverton, Slocan, and New Denver in Partnership with SIFCo

The 3 Villages and SIFCo are continuing to work on the project and are waiting to hear back
about the CBT grant application for community education regarding FireSmart.

WildsafeBC

The new Coordinator for our area is: Tammy White
New Denver, Silverton, Nakusp & Area K

WildSafeBC Community Coordinator

"Keeping Wildlife Wild and Communities Safe"
newdenver@wildsafebc.com | www,wildsafebc.com
https://www.facebook.com/WildSafeBCNewDenvet/
Find us on Facebook, Instagram and Twitter@wildsafebc

North Slocan Organic Waste Diversion Pilot Project

Thank you, Councillor Arlene Yofonoff and Councillor Kerry Gordon, for being Council
representatives on this project,

Slocan Valley Economic Development Initiative Update

See the report on findings from the Kootenay Cannabis Symposium in this agenda package.

Public Works:

Public Works has been busy continuing spring clean up and beautification of the Village, while
also completing projects such as the exercise equipment, completing the requests from the
Community Club for the July ¥ celebrations, water leaks on Village property or turning off
water for leaks on private property, planting the Full Moon Japanese Maple for the 100"
anniversary of LGMA, and general maintenance of Village assets and property.

Public Works worked with Silverton General Store and a contractor to complete the sidewalk
ramp. This was paid for by the Village and was a project for our sidewalk maintenance budget in
2019.

Public Works has completed the installation of the Outdoor Exercise Equipment with a view of
the lake with each piece of equipment.
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Meetings:
Attended the regularly scheduled weekly meetings with Mayor Clarke.
Met with CBT representative for our area.

Attended the first RDI Climate Adaptation partnership meeting in-person with Councillor Tanya
Gordon and Councillor Leah Main and the RDI team.

Attended the Council Committee of the Whole meeting.

Attended a meeting with MOTTI and Council members.

Facilitated the second Strategic Session for Silverton Council.

Attended the RDCK flood plain presentation on the 1% phase of the project. -
Met with the Economic Development Coordinator for the Slocan Valley.

Met with RDCK Emergency Management staff member regarding staff resources and the
operational process for emergency responses for Village staff as a member of the RDCK service.

Attended a meeting with SIFCo and Council members.

Our staff in-person Asset Management Phase 2 project meeting has been booked for Thursday,
June 13% in Nakusp. The Public Works Foreman will also be attending this meeting.

Had meetings and correspondence with several community members/groups regarding concerns,
requests, or questions,

Met with staff regularly.
CAO Training/Courses:

Attended a free financial workshop hosted by the City of Nelson with the Administrative
Assistant.

Staff continue to watch for Webinars in areas of need for the Village, without unnecessary
duplication of staff training and responsibilities.

Please note: staff utilize free webinars as much as possible.

Hillary Elliott, CAO
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VILLAGE OF SILVERTON
PUBLIC WORKS MONTHLY REPORT
Council Meeting

Attended regular meetings with the CAO for efficient and effective operations management.

Road and Streets

¢ Remove low hanging tree branches

e  Picking up branches for arbor clean up

Parks and Recreation

e  Plant tree and clean up around the bench at the mouth of the creek
o Install exercise equipment

+ Leveling site and cleanup in day park

» Cutting grass and weed eating

¢ Repair toilets in the camp ground

o Install front doors in Gallery

» Service generator
e Switch to the big pump
s  Working on plan to up grade the above ground water line grossing at Silverton

creek

Equipment
»  Warranty work on dodge truck finished

s Servicing lawn mowers




